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Clayton County Public Schools
Office of the Chief Financial Officer

1058 Fifth Avenve * Jonesboro, Georgia 30236 (770) 473-2700 » FAX (770} 473-2722

DR. GLORIA R. DUNCAN TT-TEZRE_SA P MCPUGALD
Interim Superintendent of Schoolg _ Chief Financial Officer
January, 2008

Claytont Connty Board of Education
Joneshoro, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Clayton County Board of
Education (Board) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is submitted herewith. This
report was prepared by the Budget and Finance Department. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
mcluding all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education.

We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects. We believe that if is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of
operations of the Board of Education as measured overall and by the financial activity of
its various funds. The data includes all disclosures and required supplementary
information necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
Board’s financial activity.

Readers of this report are encouraged to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information presented in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis beginning on page 3 of this repart.

- The report is divided into sections as described below:

Introductory Section- The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Board
of Education composition, the organizational chart of the school district, as well as a list
of the administrative staff.

Financial Section- The financial section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statetents, Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements, and Supplemental Information. The Basic Financial
Statements together with the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion
and Analysis and the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are designed to provide a
financial overview; the Supplemental Information provides more detailed information on
a fund by fund basis,

1] )
Clayton County Board of Education




The Board’s History and Services -
Clayton County, Georgia was created by an act of the State Legislature on November 30,
1858. It was named for the Honorable Augustin S. Clayton (1783-1 839), a judge of the
Western Circuit of Georgia, a member of the legislature and of Congress. The City of
Jonesboro is the county seat and was originally called “Leaksville”. The State of Georgia
grauted a charter for the Leaksville Academy on December 22, 1823 and Mr. Allen D.
Candler organized the Clayton High School around the year 1858.

Georgia had no regularly organized system of common schools supported by public
taxation before the War Between the States, although unsuccessful efforts were made in~ ™
1845 and again in 1856 to inaugurate such a program. The first real school orgamization
came about as a result of an act on October 13, 1870,

The Clayton County School System operated from 1870-1890 under the supervision of a
County Commission of Education. Data indicate that the Clayton County School System
as it is known today was formally established by an act of the State Legislature at
Jonesboro on September 21, 1891. A tax was levied on taxable property in the amount
of 7 /4 mills. A Board of Education composed of nine members was authorized and
provision was made to receive a pro-rata share of county funds for schools.

Today the nine-member elected Board of Education has full authority to control and
manage the schools within Clayton County. Clayton County Public Schools is the fifth
largest school system in the State of Georgia with approximately 52,000 students
currently enrolled in 35 elementary schools, 14 middle schools, 8 high schools and 2
special entity facilities for the current budget year of 2007-08. The district has also
approved two charter schools within the county, The Lewis Academy of Excellence
serving students in kindergarten through fifth grade and the Unidos Dual Language
Charter School serving students in grades kindergarten through second grade.

The Board provides all basic services required by state law and policies of the State
Board of Education and State Department of Education. These services include:.
preschool for three and four-year old handicapped students, regular preschool for four-
year olds students, regular and special education instructional programs at the elementary
(kindergarten through 5™ grade), middle (6™ through 8™ grade), and secondary (9
through 12* grade) levels. Additional services include programs for Career Technical
Education in partnership with post-secondary institutions in the area as well as joint '
enroliment opportunities for high school students with Clayton State University.

Economic Condition and Quflook

Clayton County is part of the Metropolitan Atlanta Area. The County is south of the City
of Atlanta and Hartsfield-Tackson Atlanta International Airport is within the boundaries
of Clayton County. " Because of this location, the school district is impacted by the
economy of the airport and the airline industry. The recent bankruptcy of Delta Airlines
had a major impact on the school district. Delta Airlines is the largest taxpayer in the
county and because of their bankruptey, the school district was negatively impacted to the
amount of §13 million during the FY2007 fiscal year. There is hope that this money will
cventually be collected, but to date only a small portion has been realized. In addition to
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the airport and airline industry, the downturn in the Americaﬁ automobile industry also
hit Clayton County with the closing of a Ford plant which employed many residents of
Clayton County last year.

In addition to private industry, the county is also home to a military facility that is
scheduled to be closed in 2011. Plans for the revitalization of the Fort Gillem property
are underway with the hope that this will bring new economic opportunities to the
county.

Several cities within the county are pursuing livable communities grants and access to
funding through the formation of tax allocation districts in an attempt to breathe new life
into certain areas of the county, especially on the northern end that abuts Fulton County
and the City of Atlanta. A new president for the County Chamber of Commerce was just
named. The experience she brings is related to helping counties such as Clayton with

© revitalization efforts.

Major Initiatives

“During fiscal year 2007, the'Board revised its vision, mission and beliels of the school
system. The process involved principals, central office administrators, the
superintendent’s cabinet and the community. Afier several months of discussion and
review, the Board adopted the revised Mission, Vision and Beliefs in July, 2007.

Mission

To provide a safe and supportlve environment that promotes the highest quality education
for each child.

Vision

Clayton County Public Schools aspires to be the highest performing school district in the
Metropolitan Atlanta area.

Beliefs
~® Learning is most productive when the needs of each child are met through
mstruction provided by competent teachers.

¢ Children must be provided the opportunity to reach their full potential in their
educational setting,

Education is the shared responsibility of the home, the school and the community.
A learning environment where children experience security, care, dignity and -
respect is essential,

» ostering a love of learning is necessary for children to become lifelong learners.
Communication and understanding among all stakeholders of our diverse
community are essential tc achieving the goals of education,

* Children must accept responsibility for thetr leaming and improvement of their
fufure.

e Aninvolved parent will enhance the educational experience of every child.

In July, 2007 Superintendent Dr. Barbara Pulliam resigned after serving just over three
years. Dr. Glona Duncan, principal of Riverdale High School was selected to serve as
v



interim superintendent until June, 2008, A search team made up of community
members, teachers and students is in the process of working with a search firm for the
next superintendent of Clayton County Public Schools. The goal is to have the new
leader in place for the beginning of the FY08-09 school vear.

Accounting System
Internal Controls

In developing and evaluating the Board of Education’s accounting system, consideration
is given to the adequacy of internal controls. Internal accounting controls are designed
to provide assurance within reasonable constraints:

* the safeguarding of assets and gains and loss from unauthorized use and/or
disposition _ )

¢ the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability for assets.

‘Budgetary Conirols

An annual budget is prepared in accordance with state law. Budgetary control is
maintained at the fund level by encumbrance accounting.

The budget process is comprised of five phases — planning, preparation, adoption,
implementation and evaluation. These phases ensure adequate administration and control
of all Board funds. To maintain compliance with Board budget policies and State of
Georgia law, a budget development calendar is adopted by the Board of Education in
September of each year. The calendar outlines the budget development process for the
next fiscal year. :

The budget process is inclusion of central level and school level staff as well as 2
citizen’s budget committee. Work sessions with the Board and public bearings are held
prior to the adoption of the budget in June of each year.

Single Audit

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the Board is responsible for ensuring that
‘adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these programs. These internal controls are subject to periodic
evaluation by the Board’s management.

‘Cash Management

The Board is authorized by state statutes to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury
agencies and instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, bank certificates of deposit, and
the Georgia Fund 1 administered by the State of Georgia. Board policies and procedures
with regard to cash and investments provide guidetines for the daily operations in the
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cash and investment area. The Chief Financial Officer acts as the investment officer for
the Board.

Independent Audit

The Clayton County Board of Education and the State of Georgia requires an annual
audit of its financial statements by independent certified public accountants. The firm of
Mauldin and Jenkins is the current accounting firm under contract with the Board to
perform this function. The Independent Auditor’s Report on the Basic Financial
Statements in included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports
related specifically to the single andit are included in the Single Audit section.

Association of School Business Officials Certificate of Excellence

For the first time, the Clayton County Public School System is submitting a
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for review by the Association of School
Business Officials (ASBO) for consideration in the Certificate of Excelience in Financial
Reporting Program. Receipt of this award would confirm that this report substantially
conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as recommended and
adopted the Association of School Business Officials International. The award is granted
only after an extensive review of financial repotts by an expert panel of certified public
accountants and practicing school business officials. We believe that the CAFR for the
year ended June 30, 2007 conforms to their principles and standards.

Acknowledgements
We wish to express our appreciation to the Department of Budgets and Finance staff
members whose dedicated efforts have enabled this report to be prepared on a timely
basis.

Respectfully submitted,
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Dr. Gloria Duncan
Intenm Superintendent
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Theresa P. McDugald
Chief Financial Officer
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Clayton County Board of Education R
Function and Composition

All matters relating to education and operation of the Clayton County Board of Education schools are
governed and controlled by the Board of Education (Board), as provided by Georgia Law.

The Board has the responsibility to maintain a reasonably uniform system of public schools providing
- quality education for all young people of Clayton County. With the advice of the Superintendent, it
must determine the policies and prescribe the rules and regulations for the management of the school
system,

The Board holds a work session and a regular public meeting once a month to conduct normal
business. Additional called meetings are sometimes necessary for a specific purpose.

The Board is composed of nine members who are elected on a district basis. Each member resides
within one of the nine voting districts.

The Board elects a Chairperson for a two year term and a Vice Chairperson for a one year term from
its members.

As of Janvary 1, 2007 the members of the Board and years of expiration of their terms are as follows:

TITLE NAME TERM EXPIRES

Chairperson Ms. Ericka Davis 12-31-2010
Vice Chairperson Mr. Eddie White 12-31-2008
Board Member Mr. David Ashe 12-31-2008
Board Member Ms. Yolanda Everett 12-31.2008
Board Member Mr. Nomreese Haynes 12-31-2010
Board Member Ms. Lois Baines-Hunter 12-31-20G8
Board Member Rev. Rod Johnson 12-31-2008
Board Member Ms. Sandra Scott 12-31-2010
Board Member Ms. Michelle Strong 12-31-2010
MISSION STATEMENT

To provide a safe and supportive environment that promotes the highest quality edncation for each
child. - :

K
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Superintendent and Members of the
Clayton County Board of Education

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Clayton County
Board of Education as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise Clayton County Board
of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the

..,;espnus,lbd|ty:~nf.ethe.~claytem£eumysacard-.ofsEducaﬂows»managemant-~Gur--respensibility-’is-wte:oexpﬁess-«apMGns an
these financial statements based on our audit.

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accapted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
~ to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures it the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manhagement, as
. well as evaluating the overall financial statemen? presentation. We believe that cur audit prowdes a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business- -type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Clayton County Board of Educstion as of June 30, 2007, and the
fespective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thersof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaily
accepted i1 the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Audlting Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated February
8, 2008 on our consideration of the Clayton County Board of Education’s internal control over finangial reporting and
en our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, fegulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

439 MULBERRY STREET « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 » MACON, GEORGLA 31202-1877 478-454-3000 = FAX 478-464-805] + www.imjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN [NSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1



The Management's Discussion and Analysis (on pages 3 through 14) is not a required part of the
basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of
management regarding methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpase of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collsctively comprise the Glayton County Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
~gomibining and individual nonmajot tiirid finandiat statements and schedules and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Clayton County
Board of Education. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of tederal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U. 8. Office of Managemeni and Budget (OMB) Circular A-138, Audits of Siaies,
Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a reguired pari of the hasic financial statements
of the Clayton County Board of Education, The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applisd in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are faitly presented in all material respecis
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have
not been subjected to the auditing pracedures applied in the audit of the baste firancial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on them.

., KK,

7% Loy, E

Macon, Georgla
February 8, 2008



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

-

This section of Clayton County Board of Education’s (the Board’s) annual financial
report presents its discussion and analysis of the Board’s financial performance during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to
examine the Board’s financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the
financial staterments and notes to the basic financial statements to enhance their
understanding of the Board’s financial condition.

The reporting model is a combination of both government-wide financial statements and
fund financial statements. The basic financial statements contain three cotnponents:

1. Government-wide financial statements including the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities which provide 2 broad, long-term
view of the Boards finances.

2. Fund financial statements including the balance sheets that provide a
greater level of detail and focus on how well the Board has performed in
the short term in the most significant or major funds.

3. Notes to the financial statements.

This report presents the financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2007 and other
supplementary information.,

As with other sections of this financial report, the information contained with this MD&A
should be considered only a part of a greater whole. The reader of this analysis should
take the time to read and evaluate all sections of the report, inclading the notes to the
financial statements.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2007 are as follows:

% On the government-wide financial statements:

¢ The assets of the Clayton County Board of Education (Board) exceeded its
Liabilities at the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 by $509.6 million. Ofthis
amount, $64 million was unrestricted net assets and available to meet the Board’s
ongoing obligations.

& The Board’s net assets of its governmental activities increased by $78.1 million,
This increase is primarily the result of a net increase in capital assets. The Board
experienced an increase of $51.1 million in net capital assets in its governmental
activities. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the current period. In addition; the fund balance amount of the total governmental
funds increased $26.0 million.



* Program revenues of the governmental activities accounted for $276 million, or
53.7 % of'the $513.6 million in total revenues of the governmental activities.
General revenues of the governmental activities accounted for $237.6 million, or
46.3 % of the total.

¢ The Board reported $435.6 million in expenses for the governmental activities.
$276.0 million were offset by program specific grants, charges for services or
contributions. General revenues, primarily property taxes and sales taxes were
used to provide for the remaining expenses of these programs.

® The net assets of the Board’s business-type activities increased $40,585. The
Board has two business-fype funds reported. The first is the school nutrition
program and the second is the Performing Arts Center. Total expenses for food
service activities were $25.0 million, while expenses of the Performing Arts
Center were $328,682. Program revenues, operating grants and contributions, and

~ capital contributions for these business type activities totaled $24.9 million. This
revenue, along with general revenues of interest earnings in the amount of
$326,739 resulted in the positive change in net assets referenced above of
$40,58s.

e The General Fund (the primary operating fund), presented on a.current financial
resources basis, ended the year with a fund balance of $47,158,860, an increase of
$33.1 million from June 30, 2006.

» The Capital Projects Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $73,348,770, a
decrease of $(7,581,289).

* The Board reduced its outstanding long-term indebtedness by $505,590.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this
section), the basic financial staternents, and required supplementary information. The
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of
the Board:

» The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide
both shori-term and long-term information about the Board’s overall financial
status.

« The remaining statements are find financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the Board, reporting the Board’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. :

% The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as instruction
and instructional support services were financed in the shott term as well as
what remains for fiuture spending.

% Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information
about the activities the Board operates like businesses, specifically the school
nutrition program and the Performing Arts Center.



The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial
statements with a comparison of the Board’s budget for the year.

Figure A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are érrangecl and related to
one another. : '

Figure A-1
Organization of Clayton County Board of Education’s Annual
' Financial Report
Management’s . -Basic ~Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and Analysis Statements Information
Governmeni-wide Fund Financial Notes to the
Financial Statements ' Financial
Statementsy Statements
Summary ¢ > Detail




Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the Board’s financial statements, including
" the portion of the Board’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain.

The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis
highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Government-wide

Statements Governmentat Funds - Propretary Funds
Scope Entire Board The activities of the Activities the Board operates
{except fiduciary Board that are net similar to private businesses:
funds) proprietary or fiduciary, food services,
-| such as instruction,
school administration,
and tilding
maintenance
Required + Statement + Balance sheat »  Statement of net
financial of net assels
statements assets +  Statement of
' ‘revenues, *  Statement of
-~ - Diatement sgxpenditures, PEYSNYES,
of activities and changes in oxpenses, and
fund balance changes in
fund net assets
» Stafement of cash
flows
Accounting Basis | Accrual accounting | Modified accrual Accrual accounting and

and
measurement
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Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the Board as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of
net assets includes all of the Board’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardiess of when
cash is received or paid. .

The two government-wide statements report the Board’s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets, the difference between the Board’s assets and Liabilities, are one
way to measure the Board’s financial health or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the Board’s net assets are an indication of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the Board, additional non-financial factors, such as
changes in the property tax base, community support for education and student
achievement should be considered.

The government-wide financial statements of the Board are divided into two categories:

» Governmental activities — All of the Board’s basic services are included here,
such as instruction and instructional support, administration, student
transportation and maintenance and operation of facilities.

* Business type activities — The Board operates a food service operation and
charges fees to staff, students and visitors to help cover the cost of the food
service operation. The Board also operates a performing arts center that is
accounted for as a business-type activity.



Fund Financial Statements

The Board’s fund financial statements, which begin on page 15, provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the Board as a whole.

Governmental funds — Most of the Board’s activities are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on the determination of financial position and change in
financial position, not on income determination. They are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and
all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Board’s operations and
the services it provides. Governmental fuond information helps the reader
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the Board’s programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities {reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial
statements.

Proprietary funds — Services for which the Board charges a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as
the government-wide statements. The Board’s enterprise fund (one type of
proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The Board uses internal
service funds (the other kind of proprietary fund) to report activities the provide
supplies and services for its other programs and activities. The Board currently
has an internal service find for the employee dental benefit program.



Financial Analysis of the Board as a Whole . -
Table 1, below, provides a summary of the Board’s net assets for the year ended
June 30, 2007 compared to June 30, 2006

Current and other assets § 1905 1533 124 124 202.9 "185.4 22.7%
Net capital assets 364.9  313.7 7.4 7.5 3723 321.2 15.9%
Total assets _ 555.4 467.0 188 1986 5752 486.8 18.2%
Cuwrrent and other liabilities 586 478 16 - 60.2 48972 22.3%
Long-term liabilities 52 - 58 - - 52 5.8 -1%
: +Total-liabilites -G8 838 16 - B854 58.0 18:9%
Net Assets
invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 364.8 3123 74 7.5 372.3 3198 16.4%
Restricted for capital projects 73.3 8098 - . 733 809 -.9%
Unrestricted 534 202 10.7 106 64.0 30.8 108.4%
Total net assets $ 4915 44134 181 18.1 5096 4315 18.1%

The Board’s combined nets assets increased by 18.1% to $509.6 million. Most of this
improvement in the financial position came from governmental activities, the net assets
of which grew by $78.1 million. The net assets of the Board’s business —type activities
increased $40,585 or .2%. The reasons for the increase in governmental activities is the
result of the large capitel program underway funded without debt through a Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) and capital outlay grants from the state of
Georgia. The increase in the business-type activities is attributed to the financially sound
school nutrition cafeteria operations and the fact that participation rates are high and a
large percentage of the student population is eligible for free or reduced price meals.

The Board reported a restricted net asset amount of $73.3 million. This is a decrease of
(.9)% from the restricted amount reported as of June 30, 2006. The decrease is due to the
increased activity in the capital projects fund and cash reserves being drawn down for the
projects under way. The amount set aside as restricted in the governiental activities is
relatod to net assets required by a third party or state faw to be spent for a specific
purpose.



Changes in Net Assets

Table A-2

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Table A-2 takes the information from the Statement of Activities and presents if in a
format that shows total revenues first and then expenses and the resulting increase in net

+ Revenues:
Program revenues;
Charges for services

~{-SeneraiTevenues:

Property taxes

Sales iaxes

Other taxes

Non-program specific
stata and fedaral aid

Local school activity

Total Revenues
Expenses:
instruction
Pupif services
Instructionat staff
Educalional media services
General administration
Schoot admsinistration
Business admirdstration
Maintenance and operations
Pupil transportation
Support services - central
Other support services
Non-instructional services
Commurily services
interast
Food services

Total Expenses

Increase in net assets

Interast and investment eamings

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

$ 181 1941 3.3 39 224 230
2496 227.0 215 210 2711 2480
7.4 71 - . 7.4 7.1
148,56 1229 - - 1485 1229
535 544 - . 53.5 544
7.1 7.0 - - 7.1 7.0
174 169 - - 174 1689
4.0 25 - - 40 26
7.0 3.7 5. 4 7.5 4.1
513.6  460.7 263 253 5388 486.0
28468 2805 - - 284.6 2805
12.3 8.5 - - 12.3 0.6
27 184 - - 22,7  1B.4
6.9 6.6 - - 6.9 5.6
48 37 - - 4.8 a7
24 214 - - 2.4 214
27 2.0 - - 2.7 2.0
286 275 - - 286 275
222 178 - - 222 178
5.1 85 - - 15.1 88
2.7 25 - - 2.7 2.5
1.2 1.3 - - 12 1.3
103 108 03 03 106 109
- 6.1 - - - 0.1

- - 250 23.8 250 238
4355 4081 253 244 4608 432.2
§ 7841 52.7 - 1.2 78.1 539

-2.6%
2.3%
4.2%

20.8%
-1.6%
1.4%

3.0%
53.8%
82.9%
10.9%

1.5%
28.1%
38.4%

4.5%
29.7%

1.9%
35.0%

A%
24.7%
77.6%

B.0%

-%
-2.8%
-%
5.0%
6.6%

45.2%
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Table A-2 on the previous page shows that revenues from governmental activities for
2007 were $513.6 million, while total expenses were $435.5 miilion. Governmental
activities contributed $78.1 million to the total increase in net assets, while business-type
net assets did not change.

Program revenues, in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions
and capital grants and contributions increased $22.8 million. This increase was
primarily the result of an increase in state and federal grants received for instructional
programs,

Property taxes comprise the largest percentage of the general revenues for the Board with
28.9% of total revenues coming from this source. The increase of 20.8% from the
previous year is the result of a combination of growth in the digest, a county-wide
property reassessment and an increase in the tax millage rate to 20.00. Sales tax revenues
generated by the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) decreased slightly
$.9 million to a total of $53.5 million. Interest and investment earnings increased
significantly by 82.9% as interest rates continued to rise over the course of the year and
better collections from tax revenues provided more cash throughout the year for
investment earnings,

Table A-3 summarizes the cost of the Board®s activities into nine functional categories—
Instruction; Pupil services, Instructional staff and Media services; General and Business
Administration; School administration; Maintenance and operations; Pupil transportation;
Central support; Interest expense; and Other. The table also shows each activity’s net cost
(total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for
specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the Board’s local
taxpayers by each of these functions.

Total Cost Percentage Net Cast

Percentage
of Services Change of Services Change
2007 2006 2006-2007 2007 2006 2006-2007
instruetion $234.68 28Q.5 15% 7.9 872 - A17.5%
Pupil, instrucliona! and Media Services 41.9 326 28.5% 213 138 56.6%
General and Business Administration 7.5 57 31.6% 47 3.0 56.7%
School Admintstration 214 211 1.4% 12.6 123 ~2%
Maintenance and Operations 286 275 4.0% 154 1486 55%
Fupil Transportation 22.2 17.8 24.7% 8.1 14.8 22.3%
Central Support and olher support 17.8 11.0 51.8% 15.5 78 98.7%
Community Services and non-instruetional 115 1.8 -3.4% - 1.0 o
rterest Expensa - 0.1 &5 - 0.1 =%
Total Governmental Activities $436.5 408.1 6.7% 158.5 1549 3.0%
Less: Unresticted federal and state aid: ' 17.4 16.9 3.0%
Total needs from local texes and other revanues; $ 1118 1380 24.6%

11



The total cost of governmental activities increased 6.7%, while the net cost increased at a
lower percentage rate of 3.0%. The primary reason for the lower percentage change in
net governmental activities is that the “austerity reduction” put in place in the state
funding formula was reduced. I was still in place, but at a lower dollar amount, resulting
in a lower net percentage change. The amount the Board was required to make up in
State funding in 2007 was $5.2 million, down from $10.4 in FY 2006.

Business Type Activities

Revenues for the Board’s business-type activities (school nutrition and performing arts
center) were comprised of charges for services, federal and state reimbursements and
investment earnings. (See Table A-2).

* Business type revenues equaled expenses during the year for no change in net
assets, :

e Charges for services represents $3.3 million of revenue. This represents amounts
paid by students, teachers and other customers of the cafeteria operations and the
performing arts center.

¢ Federal and state reimbursement for meals, including payments for free and
reduced lnnches, was $21.5 million.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets for these
proprietary funds will further detail the actual results of operations. ‘

Analysis of the Board’s Funds

At June 30, 2007, the Board’s governmental finds reported a combined fund balance of
$124,103,496. This is an increase of $25,992,264. The primary reasons for this increase
is attributed to the General Fund which had an increase of $33,071,208 while the Capital
Projects Fund reflected an decrease of $7,581,289.

The fund balance of the General Fund was $47,158,860 at June 30, 2007. The Capital
* Projects ending fund balance was $73,348,770 while all other Govermmental Funds had a
total fund balance of $3,595,866 at June 30, 2007.

The fiind balance of General Fund improved significantly primarily because of the better
than anticipated collection of property taxes. Delta Airlines paid 100% of the taxes due
to the school district for FY2007 and this was not an event that was anticipated.

. Approximately, $13 million in taxes for fiscal year 2006 from Delta is stiil outstanding,

The decrease in the Capital Projects Funds is the result of projects getting underway that

had been delayed in the previous year as the District went through an extensive process
of selecting a list of architects to work with,

12



- General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The Board’s budget is prepared according to Georgia state law. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Operating Fund.

During the course of the year, the Board amended its General Pund once. The primary
reasons for this amendment was to realign the budget because of the state funding cuts.

The total expenditures realized a positive variance of $19.7 million. This represents 5.4%
of the total general fund budget.

The total revenue was over the total budget by $619,591. Local sources experienced a
positive variance in the amount of $1.2 million primarily because of unbudgeted tax
revenues due from Delta Airlines being received. Federal revenues were under budget
because anticipated revenues from the federal government in support of students served
in the district who arrived and enrolled as a result of displacement from the of Gulf Coast
afier the hurricane Katrina disaster were budgeted in 07 but earned at the end of FY06.

“Capitdl Asset and Débt Administration

Capital Assets

At une 30, 2007, the Board had $372,305,252 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including land, buildings and furniture and equipment for its governmental activities.
The Board is cwrently funding a five-year capital improvement program with revenue
from a one-cent local option sales tax that was approved by the citizens of Clayton
County in September, 2004 The maximum amount of collections approved by this
referendum was $269.6 million. The sales tax revenue, along with state capital outlay
grants will fund the program through 2009. '

Land $ 3386 208 - - 336 20.9 60.8%
Construction in progress 23.7 305 - - 237 305 %
Buildings and improvements 249.1 249 48 4.9 208.9 254.8 %
Equipment and furniture 13.4 12.4 2.7 2.6 16.1 15.0 %

Total capital assefs

net of depreciation § 364.8 337 7.5 7.5 372.3 321.2 15.9%
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Mote detailed information about capital assets can be found in note 7 of the Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2007, the Board had no outstanding long-terms bond debt. Because of the
availability of the one cent sales tax for capital improvements since 1997, the Board has
ot had the need to issue any new debt and used proceeds from the sales tax to retire all
of the previously existing long-term bond debt.

Economic Factors

The downturn in the economy has had a significant impact on the state and the local
COInMmUmItY.

The bankruptey of Delta Airlines has cause tremendous challenges for the state and local
¢conomy. Delta Airlines is the largest single texpayer for the County and generates
approXimately 10% of the school district’s tax revenue. For fiscal year 2006,
approximately $13 million was budgeted in tax revenues from Delta. None of this
revenue was collected and as of 6/30/07 it was still outstanding. For the budget year
2006-2007, because of the uncertainty of the Delta revenue and mandates from the
Georgia Legislature to fusther reduce class size, the Board was forced to raise it’s
maintenance and operations millage rate to the maximum amount allowed by law to
20.00 mills. In addition, the County has seen significant changes in the demographic
makeup of the population. The percentage of students that now qualify for free or
reduced priced lunches now exceeds approximately 73% district-wide.

The district has now become a district Title I School which means all schools in the
district are eligible to receive federal funding under the No Child Left Behind Act for the
Economically Disadvantaged.

Despite the economic challenges of the area and the district, support for public education
remains strong as evidenced by the passage of the continuation of the one-cent sales tax
referendum in September, 2004.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the Board’s citizens, taxpayers, customers,
and mvestors and creditors with a general overview of the Board’s finances and to
demonstrate the Board’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms, Theresa
McDugald, Chief Financial Office, Department of Budgets and Finance, Clayton County
Public Schools, 1058 Fifth Avenue, Jonesboro, Ga. 30236.
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Clayton Connty Board of Education

Statement of Net Assefs
June 30, 2007
Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Intergovernmental
internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Other current assets
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Intergevernmental payables
Accrued payroll and payroll withholdings
Accrued dental claims
Other current liabilities
Claims payable due within cne year
Claims payable due in more than one year
Capital leases due within one year
Capital leases due in more thao one year
Compensated absences due within one year
Compensated absences due in mere than one year

Total liabilities

Net Assels:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total nct assets

¥ 67,210,335

£ 12416675

$ 79,627,010

56,572,907 56,572,907
3,161,834 - 3,161,834
62,427,938 259,792 62,687,730
1,011,690 (1,011,690) -
- 648,852 648,852
15,025 - 15,025
108,394 - 108,394
57,350,742 - 57,350,742
307,505,902 7,448,608 314,954,510
555,364,767 19,762,237 575,127,004
13,639,698 121,379 13,761,077
65,552 - 635,552
44,564,579 1,442,850 46,007,429
344,586 - 344 586
0 - 0
212,823 - 212,823
628,964 - 628,964
24,018 - 24,018
27,037 - 27,037
2,483,415 50,073 2,533,488
1,867,071 18,343 1885420
63,857,813 1,632,651 65,490 464
364,805,589 7,448,608 372,254,197
73,348,770 - 73,348,770
53,352,595 10,680,978 64,033,573
$ 491,506,954 % 18,129,586 $ 509,636,540

- The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Clayton Connty Board of Education

Statcment of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for’ Grants and Geants and
Activitles and Functions Expenyes Services Comtributions ContrTbetions
Governmenial acdivitiey:
Instruetion ¥ 284,656,120 H 189,571 $ 194,933,512 f 7375103
Pupil services 12,303,138 78415 5,656,282 -
Improvement of instrucional services 22,658,292 10,455 10,056,464 -
Educational medie ssrvices 6,930,008 - 4,769,039 -
Generl adminfstration 4,809,547 - 2,158,239 -
Schoo! administeation 21,414,698 - 8,769,833 -
Business services . 2,772,263 - 624,338 -
Mai and operations 28,614,235 - 13,186,473 -
Stadent transpostation 22,222 626 . - 4,153,936 -
Central support services 15659973 140 2,269,802 -
Othar support services 2,730,189 566 - -
Other pon-inztraciiosal services 1,158,476 13,396,684 425,063 -
Community services 10,270,962 5,188.630 2,518975 -
Iriterest on long-term debt 15.605 - - - -
Tolal governmenta] aclivities ] 435575213 3 19.084.46] H 249,602,476 8 . 7375103
Business-type activities:
Schoo! fnod service s 25,031,706 5 3,124,147 S 21,537,062 5 -
Performing arts center 328.682 213115 - -
Tuotal business-type sctivities 25,360,478 31,347,262 21527062 -
Total s 460,935,211 H 23,481,723 5 271,128,538 § 7,375,103
General revenues:
Property laxes
Sales tanes
Qiber faxes
Grants ard contributions oot eesiricted to specific programs
Local school activity
Unrestricied investment eamings
Gatn on sale of capitai asseis
Total peaersl revenues
Change in net agsety
Net assets - beginning of year
el assets - end of yoar
5

The notes to the basic financial statements are an inlegralpart of Bis stak
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Net {Exp } Re awtd Changes i Ned Assely
Governmenéal Businesstype Total
Activities Activitles Activities
(#2,137934) 3% - £ (82,137,934)
{6.565,441) . {6.568.441)
(12:591,373) - (12.591,373)
£2.160,569) - (2,160,968
(2,651,408} - (2.651,408)
{12,644.845) - (12,644,845}
{2,037477) - {2,037.427)
5420.162) - (15,427,762}
(18,068,590} - (18,068 650)
12,760,031) - (12,700,021}
2,729,623} - (2,729,623)
12,663,271 - 12,663,271
(2372357 - (2,372,357
{13,605} - (15,505)
(199.533,193) - (159,533,193)
- 4 (370587 $ (370.587)
“ - (Hssen {115,567}
- (486,159) {485,154}
(159,533,193)  § 436,1549) % (160,019,347}
148,448,796 - 148,448,795
53,538,851 - 53,538,851
7,109,991 - 7,109,991
17,409,359 - 17,409,359
4,036,302 - 4,036,302
5,591,393 526,739 7,518,132
73472 - 73472
13T 08154 526730 238,134,903
78,074,971 40.585 78,115,556
413,431,983 18,089,001 431,520.984
491,506,954  § 18,129.586 § 509,636,540

The notes to the basic fimocial siztements are an inteprabpart of this simemen,
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Clayton County Board of Edncation

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 39, 2007
Major Funds TR T Other Total
Capitsl Governmentat Goveramental
General Projects ¥unds Funds
Assets:
Cash $ 45436241 $ 18,853,221 5 2,920,903 5 67,210,335
Investments 6,407 56,566,500 - 56,572,907
Receivables:
Accounts 1,657,689 5,457 1,496,688 3,161,834
Intergovemnmmental 40,580,039 10,132,192 F1,715,107 62,427,038
Dae from other funds : 10,068 875 - 1,903,888 11,972,763
Prepaid items 15,025 - T 15,025
Other current assets . : 108,394 - - 108,394
Total assets 3 97372640 ¥ 35.55'&970 b 18,038,586 . & 201,469,196
Liablilifies and fand bslances:
Liabilities:
Accounts paystle ' $ 922205 % 12200200 § 503,203 ¢ 13,639,698
Dhue to other funds 2,198,084 - ' 8.911.705 11,109.78¢
Accrued payrol! and payroll withholdings 39,607,389 - 4,957,190 44,564,579
Other current liabilities - - 70 70
. . Intergovernmental paysbles - - M8,552 . 65,852
Deferred revenue 7,986,012 - - 7,586,012
Tl Habilities 50,713,780 (2,209,200 14,442,720 77,365,700
Fund Balances:
Reserved for capital projects - 73,348,770 - 73,348,770
Reserved for bus replacement 876,397 - - 876,357
Reserved for software implementation 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Upreserved, reported in: .
General fund 24,782 463 . - 44,742,463
Bpecial revenue filnds - - 3,595,866 3,595,866
Total fund halances 457,158,560 73,348,770 3,595,866 24,103,496
Total lahbilities and fund
balances § 97872540 $ 85557.970 b3 13,038,586 5 201,465,196

-

‘The notes (o the basic financial statements are an integesl part of this statement.
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Clayton County Board of Education
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007

RNy

Total fund balances for governmental funds
Total net agsets reported for governmental activitics in the statement of net assets is different bocause:

Capital assets used in governmentat funds are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist oft

Land 33,636,088
Construction in progress 23,713,754
Buildings and improvements, net of $294,134,261 acoumulated depreciation 294,134,261
Furniture and equipment, net of $13,371,642 accumulated depreciation 13,371,641

Some of the Distriet's property taxes will be collected afier year-end, but are not
available soon enough fo pay for the current period's expendicures, and therefore are
reported as deferred revenue it the funds.

. Interal service funds are.used by.management to.charge the. costs of dental insurance
to individual funds. The assets and [abilities of the internal service fimd are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term ligbilities that pertain to governmenta! funds, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as fund
liabitities. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the statement

Claims Payable 841,787
Obligations under capital leases 51,055
Compensated absences payable ) 4,350,486

124,103,496

364,856,644

7,986,012

(195,870)

(5,243,328}

Total net assets of governmental actlvitics

- The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Clayton County Board of Education
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Major Funds Nonmajor Total
Capitai Governmenial Governmental
General Projects Funds Fundg
Revennes:
‘Local sources $ 154,724 908 $ 53538,851 3 18,911,145 $ 227174904
State sources - 223,254,785 1,375,103 8,617,028 239,246 916
Federal sources ) 574,985 - 39,096,307 39,671,292
Interest eamed on investments 3,209,832 3,771,980 9,580 6,991,192
On behalf payments 7,227,583 - - 7,227,583
Total revermes 388,992,003 - 64685934 66,634,060 520,312,087
Expenditares:
Current:
Insfructional services 241,313,047 271,133 34,554,517 276,138,697
Pupil services 9,489,503 - 2,698,885 12,188,388
Improvement of instructional services 7.327.218 - 15,283,704 22,610,922
“Educational media services 8,871,383 - 50,534 6,921,917
General administration 3,044,360 - 1,392,769 4,437,129
School administration 21,031,470 - 40,520 . 21,071,990
Business services 2,723,679 - 1,638 2,725,317
Maintenance and operations 28,071,587 - ’ 185,886 28,257,473
Student transportation 16,338,085 3,010,835 958,108 20,307,028
Ceniral support services 8,992,107 5323154 5,442 14,320,703
Other support services 2,230,476 - 494,981 2,725,457
On behalf payments 7,227,583 . - 7,227,583
Other non-instructional services 362,304 - 596,607 1,158,911
Community service - - 10,251,046 16,251,046
Capital outlay - 62,254,348 - 62,254,348
Dbt service:
Principal retirement 24,945 1,395,495 - 1,420,440
Interest and fiscal charges 3,347 12,258 - -15,605
Total expenditl_.lres 355,251,004 72,267,223 66,514,637 494,032 954
Excess (deficiency) of revenues :
over {(under) expenditures 33,740,999 (7,581,289) 119,423 _ 26,279,133
Other fipancing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets © 104,651 - - 104,651
Transfer in - - 382,922 382,922
Transfers out (774,442) - - (774,442)
Total other financing sources (nses) {669,791) - 382,922 {286,869)
Net chanpe in fund balances 33,071,208 © o (7,581,289) 502,345 25,092,264
Fund balances - beginning of year _ 14,087,652 80,930,059 3,003,521 88,111,232
Fund balaaces - end of year $ 47,158,860 § 73,348,770 $ 3,595,866 $ 124,103,496

The notes to the basic financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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Clayton County Board of Education
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Government Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net change in fund balances-total gevernmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, assets with an thitiaj,
individual cost of more than $5,000 for furniture and equipment and $100,000 for buildings and improvemems arc
capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reporfed as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which eapital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay 3 61,171,587
Depreciation expense (£0,023.667)

The nel effect of various miscellaneous transactions invelving capital assets(iie., sales, trade-ing, and
domtions) is to decrease net assels

The issuance of Jong-term debt provides carrent fimancial resources to goverrmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consums the cutrent financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect annet assets. This amonnt is the net effect of these differsnces in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Property tax revenues received prior to the year for which they are being levied are reported as deferred revenue in the
govermental funds, They are, however, recorded as revenoes in the statement of activities. Deferred propesty tax
revenues increased this year. '

Some expenses seported in the statement of zetivities do ot require the use of current fitancial resources and, thersfore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in Clains payable (326,271)
Change in compensated absences {565,345}

Internat service funds are used by the School System to charge the costs of industrial insurance, printing, and warshouse
services to individual funds. The net revenue of the interal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Clayton County Board of Education
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual .
: General Fond -

Year Ended June 30, 2007
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis (Negative)
Revenuves:
Local sources § 152906072 § 153,553,370 $ 154,724,908 b 1,171,538
State sovirces 197,083,902 219,433 330 220,506,565 1,073,236 -
Federal sources 400,000 2,800,000 574,985 (2,225,01%) )
[nterest income 1,250,000 2,610,000 3,209,832 559,832
Total revenues 352,539,974 378,396,700 379,016,291 619,591 b
Expenditures:
Curmrent:
Instructional services 250,137,283 250,615,678 239,108,286 11,507,392
Pupil services 8,189,111 9458121 9,489,503 (31,382) _
Improvement of instructional services 8,701,074 8,896,092 7,327,218 1,568,874
Educational media services 7,072,204 7,146,140 6,871,333 274,157
General adminisiration 2,627,936 3,162,889 3,044,360 118,520
School administration 21,706,533 2L BME 522 021,031,470 785,052
Business services 2,396,695 2,781,435 2,723,679 57,756 .
Mainienance and opemations 28,398,178 28,985,241 28,071,587 013,654
Student transportation 16,248,604 19,266,428 16,338,085 2,978,343
Ceniral support services 9,579,054 11,130,181 8,992,107 2,138,074
Ofther suppott services 1,289,532 2,304,247 2,230,476 3,771
Other non-instaectional services - 562,304 (562,304)
Debt servica:
Principal retirement - - 24,945 {24,945)
Interest and fiscal chargss - - 3,347 {3,247)
Total expenditures 356,346,204 365,562,974 345,818,750 19,744,224
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over :
{under) expenditures {3,806,230) 12,833,726 33,197,541 20,363,815
Other financing soarces (mses);
Sale of capital assets - - 104,651 14,651
Transfers in - - 172,531 172,531
Transfer aut . {600,500} {600,500} {546,973 {346,473)
Total other financing sources (uses) (500.500) (600,500} (669,701} (69,261)
Net change in fund balances 5 {4406,730) § 12,233,226 § 32527750 % 20,294 524

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Clayton County Board of Education

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2007
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
'___Nonmasjor Governmental
Sehool Ferforming Activities -
Fond Arts ¥nternak
Service Center Totals Service Funds
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash $ 12,416,675 3 - 3 12,416,675 $ -
Intergovernmental accounts receivable 250,792 - 259,792 -
Iventories 648,852 - 648,852 -
Due from other finds - 145,480 145,480 148,716
Fotal current agsets 13,325,319 145,480 13,470,799 148,716
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets;
Buildings - 7,308,375 7,308,375 -
"'Furniture and equipment 5,043,224 6,167 5,049,391 -
Total depreciable assets 5,043,224 7,314,542 12,357,766 -
Less accumulated depresiation {2,348,453) (2,560,705) (4,909,158 -
Total fixed assets 2,694,771 4,753,837 7,448,608 -
Total assats 16,020,000 4,890,317 - 20,919,407 148,715
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 121,379 - 121,379 268,614
Accrued payroll and payrol] withholdings 1,507,628 3,644 1,511,272 -
Due o other funds LIS7T170} - 1,157,170 -
Accraed dental claims - - - 75,972
Total habilities 2,786,177 3,644 2,789,821 344,586
Net assets:
" Invested in capital assets 2,694,771 4,753,837 7,448,608 -
Unrestricted 10,539,142 141,836 10,680,978 (195,87¢)
Total net assets $ 13,233.913 3 4895673 3 18129586 b3 (195,870}

The notes {0 the basic financia) stat

ements are an integral part of s statement.
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Clayton County Board of Education
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Business-type Acfivities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor Governmental
School Performing Activities -
Food Arfs Internat
Serviee Center Totals Service Funds
Operating vevenucs:
Local sources $ 3134147 § 213,115 $ 3347262 $ 2,704,120
Total opesating revemses 3,134,147 313,115 3,347,362 2,704,120
Operating expenses;
Food service operations 24,215,224 - 24,215,224 -
Enterprise operation - 181,398 181,898 -
Maintenance and operations 457,569 - 437,569 -
Depreciation 379,003 146,734 325,787 -
Other support services - - - 3,151,125
Total operating expenses 25,031,796 328,682 25360478 3,151,125
Operating loss _f21,892,649) . (L15,567)  ...(22,013216) . {447,005)
Nonoperating income:
Intergovernmental revenues 21,527,062 - 21,527,062 -
[nterest earned on investments 526,739 - 526,739 -
Total nonoperating income 22,053,301 - 22,053,801 -
Net income (loss) before transfers 156,152 (113,567} 40,585 (447,005)
Transfer in - - - 391,520
Change in net assets 156,152 (113,567) 40,585 (55,485}
Total net assets (deficit), beginning of year 13,077,761 5,011,240 18,089,001 {140,385)
Total net assets (deficit), end of year $ 13233913 3 4895673 3 18,129,586 $  {195870)

The notes to the besic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Claytom County Board of Education

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Cash flows from eperating activities:
Receipts from local sources
Recsipts from interfurd services provided
Payment to suppliers '
Paymerits to empioyees
Payments on behalf of employeas

Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing acfivifies:
Transfers in

Subsidy from federal and siate grants
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash tised by capitat and related financing activities
Cask flows from nvesting activides;
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiwilems - beglaning
Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Displayed on statements of net assets as:
Cash and investments

Business-type Activities - Enterprize Funds

Reconciliation of operating loss to et ¢ash provided by operating activities:

Operating loss
Adjustmens to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities;

Depreciation expense
Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental receivables
Increase {decreass} in due from oiher funds
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase (decrsase)} in due to other funds
Increase in accrued payroll and payrofl witbheldings
Increase in acerued dental claims

Total adjustments
Net cash used by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activitles;

Nonmgjor Governmeatal
Schaol Performing Activitfes -
Food Arts Internal
Service Center Totals Service Funds
$ 3014220 3 199990 $ 3,314,210 b ] -
B - - 2,704,120 i
{13,246,574) {62,047 {13,308,621) . (3,005,640}
(8,201,551 {126,913) {8,428 464} -
(1,334,512) {11,030} {1,845,542) -
(20,268,417) - (20,268 417} {391,520)
. - - 391,320
21,527,062 - 21,527,062 -
21,527,062 - 21,527,062 391,520
(439,944 . {439,944) )
(439,944) - (439,544) -
526,739 - 526,739 -
526,739 - 526,739 -
1,345,440 - 1,345.440 -
11,071,235 - 11,071,235 -

3 12416675 5 - § 12416675 § -

$ 12,416,675 § - 3 12,416,675 ] -

§ (21,897,649  § (115567 8 (220132167 § (447,005)
379,003 146,734 525,737 -
{19,927} 920 (19,007 -

- {14,045) (14,045) 19,366
134,795 - 134,795 -
(6,936) (1,508) {8.444) -
1,068,239 (17.566) 1,050,273 -
74,058 1,382 73,440 -
~ - - 36,119 )
1,629,232 115,567 1,744,799 55,485 -
$ (206,263417) - {20,268417) {341,520y

During the year ended Fune 30,2007, the School Food Service Fund received §1 713,920
in commicdities from the United States Department of Agriculture,
The notes to the basic financial statements are an intspral part of this statement,
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Clayton County Board of Education
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Fund
June 30, 2007
Student
Activities
Fund
Assets:
Cash 3 388,226
. Fotal assets $ 388,226
Liabilities:
Due to others 388,226
Total liabilitias 388,226

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 36, 2007

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The Clayton County Board of Education (the “School System”) operates under a
Board/Superimtendent form of government. The nine member Board is elected by the public and the
Board appoints the superintendent. These nine elected members have decision making auﬁmnty,

power to designate management, and the ability to significantly mfluence operations. The Board

determines the millage rate at which school taxes are levied and may incur bonded indebtedness with
voter approval.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all ofthe nonfiduciary activities ofthe School Systens. Forthe most
patt, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Govemmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported

separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
services.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ofa given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a spectfic function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to those who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly mcluded among pro gram
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financia! statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues

are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the

timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which

they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
- requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cument financial resources
‘measurement Tocus aiid the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period. For this purpose, the School System considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days ofthe end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incwrred, as under acerual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due,

The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting,

Property taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental grants, and investment income associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of cumrent fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the School System.

The School System reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the School System’s primary operating fand. It accounts for all financial
resources of the School System, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the proceeds of a one percent Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax as well as revenues from local and state sources to be used for land and
building acquisitions and construction and renovations ofnew educational and administrative
faciltties. '
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

e

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIN UED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The School System reports the following major proprietary fund:

The School Food Service Fund accounts for the monies and commodities received from the
federal and state governments and the School Food Service’s cafeteria sales for the purpose of
maintaining the School System’s breakfast, lunch, and snack programs.

Additionally, the School System reports the following fund types:

"The special revenne funds account for Federal and state funded programs. These grants are

awarded to the School System for the purpose of accomplishing specific educational tasks as
defined in the grant agreements. These funds also contain several locally funded programs
whose expenditures are limited to specific purposes. School Activity Funds arealso reported as
special revenue funds. The School Activity Funds are used to account for funds collected
primarily through the fund raising efforts of the individual school. Each school’s principal is
responsible, under the authority of the Board, for collecting, controlling, disbursing, and
accounting for his or her school’s funds. All resources of the fund, inchuding earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the schools’ activities.

The Internal Service Fund accounts for dental insurance services that are provided to other
departments or funds of the School System on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Agency Fund is used to account for student ciub and class accounts.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,

generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, Governments aiso have the option of fllowing subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.

The School System has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTES 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wile
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the School System’s school
food service program and the General Fund. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs reported for the various functions concerned.

Amountsreported as program revenues include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operafing grants
and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated rescurces are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include
all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations, The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds and of the School System’s internal service fund are charges for
goods and services provided. Operating expenses ofthe enterprise funds and internal service fands
include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the School System’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Cash and Investments
The School System’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,

and-short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

YR
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
E. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative o flending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year as well as all other outstanding balances between fiinds are reported as “due
to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

F. On-Behalf Payments

The State of Georgia makes certain health insurance and pension plan payments on behalf of the
Schoof System for its employees. The School System records these payments as both a revenue and

expenditure in the General Fund. The total of the on-behalf payments for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007 was $7,227,583.

G. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Donated food commodities are
recorded at fair value. The School System utilizes the consurnption method to recognize inventory
usage, Under the consumption method, inventories are recorded as expenses when used rather than
when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid #tems in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

H. Non-Monetary Transactions
The Scheol Systemreceived from the United States Department of Agriculture through the Georgia
Depariment of Education approximately $1,713,920 in donated food commodities for its lunchroom

programs. The federally assigned value ofthese commodities is reflected as revenue and an expense
in the financial statements,

31



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

[

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. Capital Assets

Capital Assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmentel or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. .
Capital assets are defined by the School System as assets with an initial, individual cost of morethan
$5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or

constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. '

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following

estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Improvements 20-560
Buildings 20-50
Machinery and equipment 4-12
J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as Habilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement ofnet asseis. In
the find financial statements, governmental fund types report the fiice amount ofdebt issued as other
financing sources.

K. Compc;nsated Absences
It is the School System’s policy to permit employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Accumnulated unpaid sick leave benefits do not vest and therefore are not accrued in any

fund, but are recognized as expenditures or expenses when incurred. Accumulated unpaid vacation
pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fuggd financial statements.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

4 -

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

M. Use of Estimaies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAY, STATEMENTS AND
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One elernent ofthat reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not
due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the fands.” The details of
this $5,243,328 difference are as follows:

Capital leases $ 51,055
Workers’ compensation claims payable 841,787
Compensated absences 4,350.486

Net adjustment to reduce find balance — total governmental funds
To arrive af net assets — governmental activities § 5243328
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of
activities

The governmental fund statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
areconciliation between ner changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated uséful Tives and reported as depreciation expense.” “The details of this $51,148,320
difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 61,171,987
Depreciation expense ' (10,023,667)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — total governmental fands
To arrive at net assets of governmental activities $ 51,148320

NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The School System adopts annual budgets for its general and special revenue funds, The School
System does not employ encumbrance accounting and accordingly, all appropriations lapse at vear
end. After the Board of Education has tentatively adopted a budget, such budget is advertised at
least one time 1 a local newspaper of general circulation. At the next regular meeting ofthe Board
members after the advertisement, the budget is revised as necessary and adopted as the final budget.
This final budget 15 then submitted to the Georgia Department of Education in accordance with
provisions of the Quality Basic Education Act (QBE).

The level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations) is at
the fund level. :

The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget (Non-GAAP) to Actual presents actual and
budget data for the General Fund. To facilitate comparison with the budget, adjustments have been
made to actual revenues and expenditures to reflect actual amounts on the budget basis.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

The primary differences between the budget basis and accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) are:

a, State QBE revenue is recorded when received (budget) rather than when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

b, Salaries and employee benefits paid to teachers under contract are recorded when paid
(budget) rather than when the lability is incurred (GAAP).

c. Payments made by the State of Georgia for School System employee benefits are recognized
as revenues and expendrtures under GAAP and are not recognized on the budget basis.

Adjustments necessary to convert the General Fund’s net change in fund balance from the GAAP
basis to the budgetary basis are as follows:

GAAP basis net change in fund balance $ 33,071,208

Adjustments for: ‘

State QBE revenue ' (2,748,219)
Saleries and employee benefits 2,204,762

State paid employee benefit revenue (7,227,583)

State paid employee benefit expenditures 7,227,583

Budget basis net change in fund balance 32,52
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Credit risk. State statutes authorize the School System to invest in: obligations ofthe United States,
the State of Georgia and other political subdivisions ofthe State of Georgia, and other states; prime

- bankers’ acceptances; repurchase agreements; and the Georgia local government investment pool
(Georgia Fund 1). Georgia Fund 1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment
pool which follows Standard and Poot’s ctiteria for AAAm rated money market funds. However,
Georgia Fund 1 operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment company Act of
1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7 like pool The pool is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company. The pool’s primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income,
liquidity and diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value). Net asset value is
calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a
monthly basis and determines participant’s shares sold and redeemed based on a $1.00 per share
value. The fair value of the School System’s position in the pool is the same as the value of pool
shares ($1.00 per share value). The regulatory oversight agency for Georgia Fund 1 is the Office of
Treasury and Fiscal Services of the State of Georgia. As of June 30, 2007, the School System’s
investment in the Georgia Fund 1 was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

At June 30, 2007, the School System had the following investments:

Investment Maturities Fair Value
Georgia Fund 1 15 day weighted average $36,572,907

Interest rate risk. The School System does not have a formal investment policy that limits
mvestment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates,

Custodial credit risk -- deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the faiture of 2 depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party, State
statutes require all deposits and mvestments (other than federal and state government instruments) to
be collateratized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public
authorities, counties, or municipalities. As of June 30,2007, the deposits ofthe School System were
undercollateralized by $53,084.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 34, 2007

F

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2007, for the School System’s individual major funds and nonmajor fands in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uneollectible accounts are as follows:

Nonmajor School
General Capital Governmental Food Tofal

Projects Funds Service
Intergovernmental $ 48,566,051 $10,132,792 $11,715,107 $ 259,792 $ 70,673,742
Accounts 1,657,689 5,457 1,698,986 3,362,132
3 50,223,740 10,138,249 13,414,003 | 259,792 74,035,874

| Less allowance '

For uncollectible (7.986,012) - (200,298) (8,186,310)
Net total receivable | 42,237,728 % 10,138,249 $13,213,795 $ 259,792 § 65,849,564

Intergovernmental reoefvables consist of grant reimbursements due primarily from the Georgia
Department of Education, sales taxes which are collected by the state on the School System’s behalf,

and property taxes collected by the Clayton County Tax Commissioner on the School System’s
behalf.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY TAXES

Clayton County bills and collects property taxes for the School System. Property taxes are levied
(assessed) on all taxable real, public utility and personal property (including vehicles) located within
the County as of Jamuary 1% of ecach year. State law limits the School System’s tax levy for
operations to 20 mills (one mill equal $1 per thousand dollars of assessed value). Assessed values
for property tax purposes are determined by the Clayton County Board of Tax Assessors for all
property except public utilities and motor vehicles. Assessed value is set at 40% of market value.
The State of Georgia establishes values for public utilities and motor vehicles.

Real property taxes were levied on August 1, 2006 and were due November 15, 2006. Clayton
Cotmty may place liens on property once therelated tax payments become delinquent, The property
tax receivable allowance is equal to 50% of outstanding property taxes at June 30, 2007, net of
amounts collected within 60 days of year end.

Vehicle personal property taxes are due upon each respective payor’s .date of birth on an annual
basis.
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Governmental activities:

Instructional

Improvement of instructinnal services
General administration

School administration

Mazintenance and operations

Student transportation

Ceniral supporf services

Business Services

Total depreciation expense, governmenizl activities

Governmental activithes:
School food services
Cher

Tatal depreciation expense, Business-lypt activities

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the School System se follows:

§ 6995504
6,426

125,482
119,189
255,531
1,856,282
664,554

640

3 l0.0Zé 567

379,003
146,784

5 525,787
————ei

L]

JUNE 30,2007
NOTE 7. CAMTAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows;
Beginning . Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, nt being depreciated
Land b 20,864,485 $ 12,772,503 $ - .4 - § 23,636,583
Construction in progress 30,520,055 44,542,600 - (51,34%,901) 23,713 754
Taotal capital assets, not belng depreciated 51,384,540 57,315,103 - (51,343,901) 57,350,742
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 320,£98,750 - - 51,219,221 171,417,571
_ Improvements 3,644,484 - - 129,680 3,714,164
Mechinery and equipment 34,257,198 3,856,884 (2.1 10,815} - 36,013,267
Total capiial assets, being depreciated 358,110,422 3,856,884 {2,110,815) 51,348,901 411,205,402
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Balldings {72,785,33]) 6,999,930 - - (79,785,261)
Improvements AL AR (i55,194) - - [1,272613)
Machinery and equipment (21,852,719) (2,868,540) 2.079,636 - {22.641,626)
Total actumnalated depreciation 94,755,469) £10,023.667) 2,079,636 - £103,699,500)
Total capilal assets, being depreciated, net 262,154,963 (6,166,787 (31,179) 51,343,901 107,505,902
Governmental activilies capital asseis, net 5§ u 3,‘4‘395503 $ 50148320 § Giim % - §  36d.850,644
Business-Type activities
Capital assets, being depreciated;
Buildings b 7,308,375 5 - 3 - 3 - 3 7,308,175
Machinery and equipment 4,609,445 439,944 - - 5,049,350
Tutal capilal agsels, being depreciated 11,917,821 439,944 - - 12,157,765
Less accurmutated depreciation for:
Buildings (2,411,762) (146,167} - - (2,557,929}
Machinery and equipment {1,971 .608)} £375,6200 - - £2,351,228)
Total atcumulated depreciation (4,383,370} (323,787} - - (4,006,157}
Tatzl capital assets, being depraciated, net 1,534,451 85.843) - - 7448508
Business aclivilies capital agsets, net 5 153431 8 (85,343 3 - 3 - 3 7,448,608




CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 8. SHORT-TERM DEBT

Tax Anticipation Note. On July 12, 2006, the School System borrowed $40,000,000 in the
form of a tax anticipation note for cash flow purposes. The interest rate on the tax anticipation
. note was 4.50%. The note was paid off on December 22, 2006.

The ﬁ)llowmg is a summary of short-term debt transactions for the School System for the year
ended June 30, 2007:

Beginning Additions Reductions Ending
Balance Balance

Tax anticipation note: § - $ 40,000,000 $ (40,000,000) 3 -
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
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JUNE 30,2007

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Capital Leases, The Boand has entered into lease agreements for the purchase of equipment. These fease agreements qualify as

capital leases for accounting purposes, and thercfore, have been reconded at the present value of the fsture minimum leass payments
as of the date of inception.

The following is an analysis of assets under capital leases as of June 30, 2007: Governmentsl
: Activities
Equipment $ 220,500
m

The future minimum lease cbligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments
as of June 30, 2007, are a5 follows:

~aetbearEnding fune-30,
2008 5 25,934
2009 27,788
Total minimum lease payments 53,722
Less: amount representing interest 66
Present value of minimum lease paymenis [3 51,055
Beginning Ending Drue Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Yeer
Governmental acfivities:
Capital leases 3 1471495 % $ (4204400 § 51055 % 24,18
Claims payabie 313,516 1,589,149 (1,262 878) 841,787 . 212,823
Compenaated absences 3. 785,141 3,000,066 (2.434,721) - 4,350,486 : 2483415
Total governmental activitivs
Long-term liabilities $ 5,772,152 3 4589.215 §  (51IR03%) B 5243328 § 2,720,256
Business-type aciivities _
Compensated shsences payablc $ 45,188 # 7,325 % H0.091) 3§ G422 3 50,073
- Tolal business-type activities
leng-term lebilitics $ 45,188 §$ 72325 % (49,001} § 68422 § 50,073

For goverminental activities, compensated absences are Hanidated primarily by the Generz] Fund.
For business-type activities, compensated absenees are liquidated primerify by the School Food Service Bund.
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NOTE 10. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2007, 18 as follows:

Pue From
School Noamsajor
Creneral Food Service Goveramental
Due To Fand Faod Funds Total
General Fund $ - 3 1,157,170 § 8,911,705 5 10,068,875
Capital Projects Fund - - B -
Internal Service Fund 148,716 - - 148,716
Nonmajor Enterprise 145,480 - - 145,480
Neomegjor Governmenta) §,903 BE8 - - 1,903,888
5 2,198,084 3 1,157,170 § . ..8,911,705 3 ...12266,959

These balences resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in
the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers:
Transfers out
Nonmajor .
Ceneral Governmentzl Internal Service .
Trausfers In Fund Funds Fonds Total

Nonmajor Govermamental $ 382,922 b - $ - g 382922
Intemai Service Fumds 321,520 - - 391,520

3 774,442 $ - 3 - b 774,442

Transfers are used to (1} move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that the statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service
fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 390, 2007

.NOTE 11. RETIREMENT PLANS

Teachers Retirement System. Substantially all teachers, administrators, and clerical personnel
employed by the School System are members ofthe Teachers Retirement System of Georgia (TRS),
a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the TRS Board

. of Trustees. TRS provides retirement and disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Title 47, Chapter 3 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the TRS Board of Trustees. The TRS board of
Trustees issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for TRS. That report may be obtained by writing to TRS of Georgia,
Two Northside 75, Suite 400, Atfanta, GA 30331, or by calling 1-800-352-0650.

~Caovered employees are requiréd by state law to coritiibuté 5% oF théir annual covered salary to the
plan and the School System is required to contribute 9.28% of current covered payroll. Covered
employees” contributions for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $12,058,333,
$11,598,356, and $11,233,064, respectively. The School System’s contributionsto TRS for the year
coded June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $22,441,175, $21,433,731, and $20,765,099,
respectively, equal to the required contribution for each year.

Active members may retire and receive benefits after 30 vears of creditable service regardless of age,
or zfter 10 years ofcreditable service and reaching age 60. Upon retirement, an employee receives a
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. The amount is determined by multiplying 2% by the
years of service up to 40 years. This amount in turn is multiplied by the employee’s average
monthly salary for the two highest paid consecutive years of service. Early retirement benefits are
reduced by the lesser 0f 1/12 of 7% for each month the member is below age 60, or by 7% for each
year or fraction thereof by which the member has less than 30 years of service. It is also assumed
that certain cost-of-living adjustments, based on the CPI, will be made in fiuture vears. Retirement
benefits are payable monthly for life. Options are available for distribution o fthe member's monthly
pension at a reduced rate to a designated beneficiary at the member’s death,
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NOTE 11. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Schoo] Employees Retirement Svstem. Substantially all bus drivers, maintenance,

custodial, and lunchroom personnel employed by the School Systern are members of the Public
School Employees Retirement System of Georgia (PSERS), which is also a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system. The Board of the Public School Employees
Retirement System of Georgia issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and supplementary information for PSERS. That report may be obtained by writing
Public School Employes Retirement System, Two Northside 75, Atlanta, Georgia 3031 8-7778, orby
calling 1-800-805-4609.

PSERS provides service retirement, disability retirement and survivors® benefits for its members, A

- member is-eligible for normat service retirementt with ‘10 years of service aiid attainment of age 65,
-A member applying for service retirement with 10 years of service and retirees between the ages of
60 and 65 receive a reduced benefit. Monthly retirement benefits paid to members are equalto eight
dollars per month multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, Retirement provisions
include death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statue.

Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute four dollars per month for the nine
month school year. Unlike TRS, the School System makes no contributions to PSERS. Total
contributions from employees of the School System made during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007, totaled $46,764,

The State of Georgia is required by statute to make an annual contribution to PSERS based upon an
actuarial calculation. The state’s contribution for employees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,
totaled $54,591.

Members become fully vested after 10 years of service. If a member terminates with less than 10
years of service, no vesting of employer contributions occurs, but the member’s contributions are
refunded with interest. '

There were 1,306 employees covered under PSERS for the year ended June 30, 2007.
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NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT

The School System is exposed to various risk of loss for claims associated with torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors and ornissions; natural disaster; workers’ compensation;
unemployment compensation; and dental benefits. The School System is self-insured for wotkers’
compensation and dental care. The School System purchases commercial insurance for ail other
risks of loss. The Schoot System has not experienced any significant reduction in imsurance
coverage from the previous years nor has it paid any settlements in excess of insurance coverage in
the past three years. :

Den surance

+"The"S¢hool System is s&lfinsured for employee dental care. "The Séhool System has accrued a
liability for the estimated costs of claims incurred prior to and during fiscal year 2007, but not paid at
year end, and for claims settlement cost. Activity is accounted for in an internal service fund.

Workers® Compensation

The School System is partially self-insured for Workers’ Compensstion claims of its employees.
Claims exceeding $250,000 but less than $2,000,000 per occuirence are covered through a private
insurance carrier. The School System is Hable for any claims filed. The School System has entered
into a contract witha third party to administer the program. Activity is accounted for in the General

Fund.

Warkers’ Compensation June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 515,516 $ 498356
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 1,589,149 703,163
Claim payments and changes in estimates {1.262.878) (686,003)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $ 841,787 § 515516
Dental Insurance Fund June 3G, 2007 June 30, 2006
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 3 308,467 $ 351,115
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) . 3,187,245 3,102,604
Claim payments and changes in estimates : (3,151,126) (3,145,252)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $ 344,586 $ 308,467



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
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JUNE 34, 2007

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The School System is involved in a number of legal matters which either have or could result in
litigation. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of
the School System’s Jegal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition of the School Systern.

The School System participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed
by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant
programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the
School System has not complied with the rules and regulations governing grants, refunds of any
money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivables at June 30, 2007,
may be impaired. “In the opinion of the S¢hool System, there are no significant contingent Liabilities
relating to compliance with the rules and regelations governing the respective grants; therefore, no
provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contimgencies.

The School System is committed under outstanding construction contracts in the Capital Projects
Fund in the amount of $28,430,266. Construction contracts inchude new school construction and
expansion and renovation of existing facilities.

NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On July 12, 2007, the School System borrowed $15,300,000 in the form ofa tax anticipation note for

cash flow purposes. The interest rate on the tax anticipation note was 4.00%. The note had a
maturity date of December 21, 2007.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Adul¢t Education Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the Georgia
Department of Technical and Adult Education for the purpose of providing a vocational
curriculum program for adults.

After School Program Fund is used to account for the after school program in place at all
Clayton County elementary schools. Revenues consist of fees paid for the after school care of
students,

Athletics Fund is used to account ﬁ:.tr athletic events held on behalf of Clayton County’s
Schools. Revenues consist primarily of ticket and concession sales.

Home Economics Furd is used to account for the Middle School Explorations in the Home
Economics program from proceeds generated through the sale of curticulum materials developed
by School District. personnel.

Lottery Fund is used to account for the state grant funds flowing through the State of Georgja
Department of Education for varions programs as established by the state.

South Metro Fund is used to account for the development center for children with physical and
mental handicaps.

Title ¥ Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the State of Georgia
Department of Education to the Board to provide remedial education in the area of reading and
math and to provide a special education program for children who are physically handicapped.

Title 11 Fund is used to account for federal grant fund passed through the State of Georgja
Department of Education to the Board for the purpose of training teachers in the math, science,
foreign language, and computer science programs,

Title III Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the State of Georgia
Department of Education to the Board for the purpose of providing assistance to limited English
proficient children and youth in Clayton County schools in aftaining English proficiency.

Title IV Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the State of Georgia
Department of Education to the School System for the purpose of providing health and education
in the area of drug abuse.

Title V Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the State of Georgia

Department of Education to the School System for the purpose of providing continuing
innovation and educational improvement in Clayton County schools.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) -

Title VI-B Preschool Fund is used to account for federal funds authorized by the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act that are passed through the State of Georgia Department of
Education to the School System for the purpose of providing special education programs for
children with disabilities ages three to five.

Title VI-B Fund is used to account for federal funds in connection with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act that are passed through the State of Georgia Department of Education
to the School System for the - purpose of providing special education programs for children in
pre-kindergarten through 12" grade.

Yocational Programs Fund is used to account for federal grant funds passed through the State
of Georgia Department of Education to the School System for the purpose of providing a
vocational curriculum program.

WorkTec Fund is used to account for the activities of the WorkTec Rehabilitation Center,
which assists economically, academically, and physically disadvantaged youths in preparing for
or engaging in gainful employment. Programs are funded primarily by federal awards or federal
service contracts,

School Discretionary Fund is used to account for the portion of the school activity resources
used for general governmental expenditures.

Ail Other Special Revenue Funds is used to account for the activities of various other programs
funded by local, state, and Federal funds,
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Clayton County Board of Education

Combining Balanece Sheet
Nonmajor Govermmenrtal Fonds
June 30, 2007
Special Revenue Fands
Adult After School Home
Edueation Programs Athletics Economies
Assets:

Cash and investments % - $ - $ 189,419
Receivables:

Accounts - . -
~ntergoveratenial 173,266 - -
Due from other funds 685 526,111 -

Total assels - § 174251 S 526,111 § 189,419
Liabilittes:
Acoounts payahle $ - ¥ 836 $ -
Accrued payroll and peyroll witkholdings 4,122 - -
Other current liabilitics - - 70
Intergovernmental payables - - -
Due to other finds 169,579 - -
Total liabilitics 174,251 836 70
Fund balances (deficits);
Unreserved: .
Undesignated - 525,275 189,349
Total find balances - 325,275 189,349
Total liabilittes and fand’
. batances 3 174,251  § 526,111 % 189,419
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Lotrery Metro Ftte § Tide 11 Title XXI Title IV

- $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 .

- - 1,730 - - -

- 1,844,202 4,234,687 ~FFBSH6 149,335 212,485
401,512 10,457 934 466 - - -
201512 § 1854679 § 5670883 0§ 773,546 0§ 1493315 0§ 212485
22,256 % 44743 182403 § 45141 § 15227 8 -
382,437 503,069 2,162,563 214,648 43,695 19,663
43,502 10,457 11,593 - - -

: 1,296,410 3,314,324 513,757 90,413 192,822
448,195 1,854 679 5,670,883 773,546 149,335 212,485
(46,683) - - - - -
(46,681) - - - - -

401512 5 1854679 § 5670883 0§ 773546 3 149335 0§ 212485
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Clayton County Board of Education

Combining Balance Sheet e
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2007
2
Title VI-B Yocational )
_ Title V Preshaook Title VI-B Programg
Asaets:
Cash and investrents - g - 8 - 5 - _
Receivables: i
Accounts - - . -
- ~edntergovenricnial -+ 19880 2FR52 --*2,*599,256 395,030
Due from other funds - 18,227 - - -
Total assets 10880 8 46,079 3§ 269925 % 305,030
Liahﬂ_ilies;
Accounts payable %0 £ - 3 41,134 $ 1,589
Accrusd payroli and payroll withholdings 2,681 46,07 1,384,833 928
Other current labilities - - - -
Intergovernmentsf payable - - - -
Die to other funds 17,109 - 1,273,28% 302,503
Total liabilities 19,880 46,079 2,699 256 305,030
Fund balances {deficits):
Unreserved:
Undesighated - - - -
Total fund balances - - . -
Total liabilities and fund
balances 13,880 % 46078 § 2699256 . § 305,030
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Thatal

Nommajor

School All Other Goveramental
WarkTec Discretionary Special Revenne Fands

$ 6047 5 2,671,047 $ - $ 2,920,903
1,496,958 - - 1,498 682
- - - F5:548 115,407
- - 12,130 1,903,888
$ 1,557,395 % 2,671,047 $ 787,678 5 18.038,586
$ - 50678 3% 67,305 L 36,791 $ 508,203
147,067 ~ 44 805 4,957,190
- - - 70
- - - 65,552
792,90% 251,818 696,822 8,911,708
990,654 319,123 TI8AL8 14,442,720
566,741 2351924 9,260 . 3,595,866
566,741 2,351,924 9,260 - 3,595,868
$ 1,557,385 § 2,6.71,047 $ TR76T8 . % 18,038,586
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Clayton County Board of Education

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Foand Balances
Noamajor Governmeninl Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007
e Special Revenue Funds
Adult Alter School Home
Education Programs Athletles Ecenomics
Revenues: .
Lotal sowces i 36,828 $ 28445653 $ 448,324 3 - -
State spurces 208,571 - . - ’
Federal sources 252,00 - - - .
Interest samed on investments - - 8.794 - -
Total revenues 537489 2,844,653 457,118 -
Expenditares:
Crurent:
Instraction 378,993 - - - .
Pupil services - - - -
Improvement of instructional services 150,914 - - -
Educational media services - - - -
General admivistration - - - -
“*Stthod] dilministration : - - - -
Business services - - - - -
Maintenance and operations 15,964 - - -
Student transporiation - - - -
Central support services - - - -
Other support services - 140 - -
Other non-instructional services - - S5BR,402 8,205
Community service - 2,511,358 - -
Total expenditures 38T 2,511,398 SB8.A402 8,205
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over (under) expenditures (8332) 333,255 (131,284) {3.205)
Ciher financing sources:
Transfer in 6,231 - 250,000 -
Total other financing sowmes 6,231 - 250,600 -
Met change in fund balences : @.151) 333,255 118,716 (3.205)
Fund baiances - beginning 2,158 192,020 70,633 8205
Fund balances - ending § - b 525275 § 189349 § -

——
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South
Lattery Metro Title 1 Tite IT Tide 1T} Tifle IV

- FLE )3 5 - 5 - 3 - ) -
2,649437 4,378 305 - - . .

- 499038 19,768,942 2,438,903 633,823 413219
2,649,437 5,406,258 12 768 942 2.438.903 633,823 413219
2439 418 3,683,841 7,462,251 367,981 126,674 226,063

{70,874 049,767 6,099 - “ -
75,613 229389 10,495,633 2,030,821 494,853 144,860
- 20,738 10,625 - - -
3,186 503,726 620,294 39,201 11,381 4,350
- - Y7349 . - -
1,552 64,364 335 200 - 29,868
- - 930,043 - _ 493 -
5442 - . . . R
40 248,433 229,763 - 425 14,078
2,696,120 5,406,238 19,768,942 2,438,903 633,823 413,219
{46,683) - - - - .
(46.,683) - - - - -
(46,683) - § - $ - b - 3 -
(continued on following page)
g .
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Clayton Connty Beard of Education
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nenmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Titde VI-B Yocetional
Tide ¥V Preshoel Tifle VI-B Programs

Revenues:
Local sources $ - 3 - g . § .
State sources - -

Federal sources 134,923 250,245 11,017,601 658,229
Interest eatned on investments - -

Totsd revenues : 134,923 250,245 11,017,601 658,229

Expenditures:
Current:
Instrection 39,084 250,245 8,573,730 513,559
Pupil services - - 1,305,334 .
Improvement of instructional services 70,602 - 09 820 144,670
Educstional media services - - - -
General administration 4,956 - 155 864 -

. wschoabadministration - - -
Business gervices - - -
Maintenance and operations - - 12,853 -
Student trnsportation - - -
Central support services . - - -
Other support services 28 - -
Other nan-instrectional services - - - -
Comnmunity service - - -

‘Total expéudiimts {34,923 250,245 11,017,601 558,229
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures - - - -

Other financing sources:
Trensfer in - - .
Total other financing sources - - - -

Net change in fund balances _ - - . -

Fund balances - beginning - - -
Fund balances - ending ’ $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Total

Nonntajor

School All Qther Governmental
WorkTec Diseretionary Spedial Revenue Funds

§  538R630 10,003,847 % 10455 % 18,911,145
532,880 - : 397329 8,617.028
1,984,328 - 1,004,565 39,096,307
786 - - 9,580
7,906,624 10,103,847 1,412,740 66,634,060
- 10,239,022 233,659 34,554,517
- - 566,811 2,698 885
- - 536,529 15,283,704
- - 19,171 50,334
. ’ - 49,816 1,392,769
— - 26,671 " H0;520
- - 1,638 1,638
- - - 185,886
- - 27,572 958,108
- - - SA42
- - 1,821 454 981
- - - 596,607
7,739,788 - ) - 10,251 046
7,739,788 10,239,022 1,463,688 ' 66,514,637
166,836 (135,175) (50,939 119423
125,000 - 1,691 382,922
125,600 . - 1,691 382,922
291,836 (135,175) {49.248) 502345
274,303 2,487,099 5%,508 3,003 521
% 566,741 b 2351924 § 9260 § 3,595,866
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Clayton Conuty Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iz Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007
Adult Education
Variance with
Final Bnodget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Ameuots (Negative)
Revenues;

Local sources - - 36,821 b3 36,821

State sources 231,020 241,398 208,577 (32,821)

Federal sourves 348,210 309,709 292,091 (17,618)

Interest eatned on investments - - - -

Total rovenues 579,330 551,107 537,489 {13,618)
Expenditores:

Current: :
Instruction 418,921 393,605 378,993 14,612
Pupil services - - - - -
improvement of instructional services 152,919 159,087 150,914 8172
Educational media services - - - -
General administration - - - -
Sohool administration - - - -
Business setvicas - - - - B
Maintenance and operations 30,530 21,455 15,964 5491
Student transportation - - - -
Central support services - - - -
Other support services - - - -
Other bon-instructional services - - - -
Community service - - - -

Capital cuday - - -

Debt service:

Principal retirerment - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total expenditures 602,37( 574,147 545,871 18,276
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (23,040) (23,040} {8,382) 14,658
Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets - - - -

Transfer in 23,040 23,040 6,231 (16,809}

Transfer out - - C- -
Total other financing sources (uses) 23,040 23,040 6,231 {16,309}

Net change in fund balances - - {2,151y % {2,1513




Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actnal
Nen-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Lottery

Variance with
Finak Budget -

Revenoes:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources
Interest eamed o investments

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cusrent:
Instruction
Pupil services
Improvement of instructional services
«wEducationalsmedia-services
General administration
School administration
Business services
Maintenance 2nd operations
Student transportation
Cenfral support services
Other support services
Other non-instractional services
Commurity service
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues gver
{under} expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets
TFransfer in
Fransfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Aciuat
Ammmix

Positive
(Negative)

2,484,434

2,692,038

2,649,437

(43,501)

2484434

2,092,938

2,649,437

(83,501

2,212,734
3,075
260,625

2,310,953
265,000
103,700

2,439,418
170,874
75,613

3,181

1,552

5,442

(128,465)
94,126
34,087

(3,1-31)

48
243
(40)

2,484,434

2,692,938

2,696,120

(3,182)

(46,683)

(46,687

3

(46,683)

{46,683)
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Non-Major Governmental Funds

- Year Ended lune 30, 2007
South- Metro

Variance with
Fina] Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Nepative)

Revenues:
Local sources 3 - $ - § 78415 % 78,415
State sources 4,953,430 4,628,805 4,823,805 -

Federal sources 976,704 1,058,967 499,038 (559,929)
Interest earmed on investments - - -

Total revenues 5,930,134 3,887,772 5,406,258 (481,514

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 4,007,106 4,088,102 3,689,841 398,261
Pupil services 822,752 664,482 649,767 14,715
Improvement of instructional services 298,852 282,437 229,339 53,048
- sEiducational sediarservices - 21397 20,738 659
General administration 492,156 405,719 503,726 . (3,007}
School administration “ - -
Business services - - - . -
Maintenance and operations 115,241 139,811 64,364 75,447
Student transportation - - -
Central support services - - ' - -
Other support services 194,027 195,824 243,433 {52,609)
Other non-instructional services - - -
Community service - - -
- Capital ouilay - - -
Debst service: :
Principal retirement _ - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - -

Total expenditures 5,930,134 5,887,772 5,406,258 481,314

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
" (under) expenditures _ - - . -

Other financinp seurces (uses):

‘Sale of capital assets - _ - - -
Transfer in - - -
Transfer out - ~ -

Total other financing sources {uses) - - -

Net change in fund balances 3 - % - 3 - 3
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Clayton County Board of Edecation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 3G, 2007
) Title 1
Variance with
Final Budget -
Buidgeted Amonnts Actual Pogitive
Oyiginal Final Amounts (Nepative)
Revenues;
Lecal sources - - - -
State sources - - - -
Federal sources 19,597,273 21,197,278 19,768,942 (1,428,336)
Tnterect earned on jnvestments - - - -
Total revenues 19,597,273 21,197,278 19,768,942 (1,428,316)
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 12,958,796 12,955,434 7.462,251 5,493,183
Pupil services 4,223 5,270 6,099 (829)
Improvement of instructional services 3,520,174 6,082,638 10,495,633 (4,412,995)
“Educational media services - T 33576 10,625 22,951
General administration 1,359,726 359,184 620,294 (261,110)
School adminisiration 600 1,310 13,849 {12,539)
Business services - - - -
Maintenance and operations 16,580 2,540 385 2,155
Student transportation 1,446,567 1,494,802 030,043 564,759
Central support services - - - -
Other support services 290,605 262,524 229,763 32,761
Other non-instructional services - - - -
Community service - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - -
Interest and fiseal charpes - - - -
Total expenditures 19,597,273 21,197,278 19,768,942 1428336

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
“{under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing sources {uses)

‘Net change in fund balances
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non—GAAP) and Actual
: Non-Major Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007
Titie II

Variance with
Final Budget .
Budgeted Amounts Actual Posifive
Original Final Amounty {Negative)

Revenues: )
Local sources $ - $ - 3 - 3 -
State sources - - _ _
Federal sources 2,493,630 2,356,308 2,438,903 (417,405)
Interest eamned on investments - -

Total revenues 2,493,630 2,356,308 2,438,903 (417.403)

. Expenditures:

Current: :
Instruction _ 673,956 329,580 367981 (38.401)
Pupil services - 19,0600 . 19,000
Improvement of instructional services 1,667,042 2,446,546 2,030,821 415,725

““Educationd] media services - - : - -
General administration ' 104,632 46,412 39,201 7,211
School administration - - - -
Business services - - - -
Maintenance and operations - 14,770 S00 13,870
Student transportation - - - -
Central support setvices - - - -
Other support services 36,000 - - -
Other non-instructional services - - - -
Community service - - - -

Capilal outlay 18,000 - - -

Dehbt service:
Principal retirement - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - ' -

Total expenditures 2,493,630 2,856,308 2,438,903 417,405

- Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures - - - .

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - - -
Transfer in - - ' - -
Transfer out - . - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - . - - -

Net change in fund balances : 3 - $ - 3 - $ -
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007
- Title I

Varianee with
Final Budget -
Budpeted Amounts Actaal Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revennes:
Local sources ) 3 - $ - $ . $ .
State sources -

Federal sources ' 675,280 676,999 633,823 (43,176}
Interest earned on investments ’ - - - -

Total revenues 675,230 676,999 633,823 {43,176)

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction 169,136 128,400 126,671 1,729

Pupil services - - - -

Improvement of instrctional services 478,518 533,654 494 853 38,81

- Educationalmedizservices - - - -

General administration 22,133 10,945 11,381 (436)

School administeation . - - - -

Business services - - - -

Maintenance and operations - - - -

Student transportation - ' 1,000 493 507

Central support services -

Other support services 3,493 3,000 425 2,575

Other non-instructional services -

Community service - - - -
Capital outlay - ' - - -
Debt service: -

Principal retirement - - - - -

Taterest and fiscal charges - - _ - -

~ Total expenditures 675,280 676,999 633,823 43,176

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under} expenditures - - - -

QOther financing sources (uses): . i e
Sale of capital assets - ER - .
Transfer in - - : - -
Transfer out - - - .
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances 3 - $ - 3 - $ -
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Aciual
Non-Major Governmental Fands

Year Ended June 30, 2007
Title IV

Yariance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Aetual Pasitive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Local sources 3 - 3 - $ - $ -
State sources

Federal sources T 455450 413,219 413,219 -
Interest eamed on investnents _ - - - -

Total revenues 455,450 413,219 413,219 -

Expenditares:
Current:
Instruction _ 198,332 118,305 220,003 (101,758)
Pupil services 57,078 - - -
Improvement of instructional services 181,428 197,839 144,860 52,979
"Educafional média services - - - -
General administration 9,612 4,695 . 4,350 345
School administration - - - -
Business services - - - - -
Maintenance and operations _ 1,000 28,320 29,868 (1,548)
Student transportation 8,000 - - -
Central support services ' - - - -
Other support services - 64.060 14,078 49,932
Other non-instructional services - - - -
Community service - - - -
Capital outiay - - - -
Debt service:
Pringipal retirement ' - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - -
Total expenditures 455450 413,219 413,219 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over .
(under} expenditures ' - - . ~

Other {inancing sources (uses): - o ST '
Sale of capital assets . o - - - -
Transfer in - - - - -
Trangfer out - - -
Toial other financing sources (uses) - - - -

. Net change in fund balances $ - 3 - $ - $ -
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Non-Major Goveramental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007 C e
Titde V

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budpeted Amonnts Actual Positive
Original Finsl Anounts {Negative) _

Revenues;
Local scurces 5§ - - $ - -5 - 5 -
State sources - -

Federal sources 169,122 137,786 134,923 (2,863)
Interest eamed on investments - - - - T

Total revenues 169,122 137,786 134,923 (2,863)

Expenditares:

Current: : -
Instruction 105,903 93,591 59084 34,507
Pupil services - _ - - -
Improvement of instructional services 56,702 42,000 70,602 (28,602)

“Educafional media services - - - -

General administration 5350 1,548 4956 (3,408)
School administration . - - -
Business services - - - -
Maintenance and operations - - - .
Student transportation - . - - e .
Central support services -
Other support services ' 1,167 647 281 366
Other non-instructionat services - - - .
Community service - - - .

Capifal outlay - . - -

Debt servica: .
Principal retirement - - - ' -
Interest and fiscaf charges - ' - - :

Total expenditures 169,122 137,786 134,923 _ 2,863

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over _
(under) expenditures. - - - -

Other fipancing sonrces (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - -
Transfer in - - _ - -
Transfer out _ N - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - by - $ -
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Nor-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30,2007 ™

Title VI-B Preschool
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actnal Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Local sources $ - 3 - $ - $ -
State sources - - _ -

Federal sources 258,898 250,245 750,245 -
Interest eamned on investments - - - -

Total revenues 258,298 250,245 250,245 -

Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction 258,898 250,245 250,245 -
Pupil services - - -
Fmprovement of instractional services - _ - - -
""Educational mefia services - - - -
General administration - - - -
Schoo! administration - - - -
Business services - - ’ - -
Mazintenance and operations - - - -
Student transportation - - - -
Ceatral support services - - - _ -
Cther support services - - - _ -
Qther non-insiryctional services - - - -
Comiounity service : - - : - -
Capita) outlay - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - : - : -

Total expenditures 258,898 - 250245 250,245 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - - - -

Other financing sowrces (uses):
Sale of capital assets . - C. - -
Transfer in - - - '
Transfer out - -

" Total other financing sonrces {(uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances | $ - 3 . - 3 - $ -



Clayton Connty Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
ol Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year BEnded June 30, 2007
Title VI-B

Varlance with
Final Budget ~
Brdgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amennts (Negative)

Revenues:
Local sources $ - $ . 5 - b
State sources - - . .
Federal sources 14,031,360 12,315,152 11,017,601 (1,297,551)
Interest carned on investments - - . .

Total revenues 14,031,300 12,315,152 11,017,601 (1,207,551}

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 10,331,706 11,866,026 8,573,730 3,292.206
Pupil services 2449449 230,274 1,305,334 (1,075,060)
Improvement of instructional services 930,741 - 909,520 (909,820}
Educational media services - - - -

- - wigeneral-achninisteation CREHTG Y PRS2 “155,864 - (14,012)
School administration - - ' - -
Business services - - - .
Maintenance and operations 123,325 77,000 72,853 4,147
Student transportation - - - -
Central support setvices - - - -
Other support services - i - - -
Other non-instructional services - - - -
Community service - - -

Capital ontlay - - - .
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - .
Interest and fiscal charges - - -

Total expendimures 14,031,300 12,315,152 11,017,601 1,297,551

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures - - - -

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capita) assets - . - -
Transfer in - - ' -
Transfer out . - -
Total otber financing sources (uses) - - _ .

Net change in fund balances $ - 2 - $ - 3 -
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Clayton County Board of Education _
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Nen-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Vocational Program
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Finai Amounts (Negative)
Revenues: .
Local spurces $ - $ - $ - g -
State gources - - -
" Federal sources 640,137 658,229 658,229 -
Intercst ecamed on investments - - -

Total revenues 640,137 658,229 658,229 -

Expenditures:
Current;

Instruction 522 498 513,559 513,559 -

Pupil gervices - - -

Improvement of instructional services 117,639 144,670 144,670 -

Educational media services - - - -

. woi3eneral.administration - - -

School administration - - - -

Business services : - - -

Maintepiance and operations - - - -

Student transportation - - - -

Central support services - - - -

Other support services - - -

Other non-instructionat services - -

Community service - - .
Capital outlay - - . -
Debt service: _ '

Principal refirement - - - -

Interest and fiscal charges - -

Total expenditures 640,137 658,229 658,229 -

Excess {deficiency) of ravenues over
{under} expenditures - - - ,

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets ' - - -
Transfer in - - - -
Transfer out - - -

Total other financing seurces (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances 3 - b - 3 - $ -
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fand Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual -

Non-Major Governmental Funds o )
Year Ended June 30, 2007 T e
WorkTec K }
- Variance with
Final Budget -
' Bodgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amgunts (Negative)
Revenaes:
Local sources $ 5,609,028 $ 5957313 % 5,388,630 5 (568,633) -
State sources 66,000 225,522 T 532,880 0 307,358 '
Federal sources 1,242217 1,000,463 1,984,328 083,865
Interest earned on investments - _ - 736 786 )
Total reveniues 6,917,245 7,183,298 7,906,624 723,326
Expenditures: E
Current: -
Instruction 1,876,636 1,712,749 - 1,712,749
Pupil services 562,589 542,511 - 542,511
Improvement of instructional services 902,240 986,020 - 986,020
‘~Educational-mefia services - - - -
General administration 68,280 68,430 - 68,430 -
School administration - - - -
Business services - - - -
Maintenance and operations . 3,620,000 3,964,088 - 3,964,088
Student transportation ' - - - -
Central support services - 22,000 - - 22,000
Other supporf services - - - -
Other non-instructional services - - - -
* Coimmunity service - - 7,739,788 (7,739,788)
Capital outlay - - - ' -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - -
. Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total expenditures 7,029,745 7,205 798 7.739.788 443,990) |
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (112,500) {112.500) 166,836 279,336
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - - -
Transfer in 112,560 112,500 125,000 12,500
Transfer out - . - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) . 112.500 112,500 125,000 12,500
Net change in fund balances 3 - 3 - 3 291,836 3 291,836
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Clayton County Board of Education
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual _

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Al Other Special Revenue
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Fingl Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
~Local sources 5 - 5 - $ 10455 § 10,455
State sources .o 1,001,817 497,240 ..., 397329 : (99,911)
Federal sources 305,624 2,197,891 1,004,965 (1,192,926}
Interest eammed on investments - ' -
Tot_al revenues 1,307,441 2,695,131 1,412,749 (1,282,382}
Expenditures:
Current;
Instrmction 358,638 604,616 233,659 370,957
Pupil services 59,824 893,236 : 566,811 328,425
" Improvement of instructional services 397,531 869,313 536,529 432,784
Educationdl media services - 20,000 19,171 ‘829
General administration 254 448 202,630 49,816 152,814
School administration .- 26,286 26,671 (385)
Business services \ - 2,000 1,638 362
Msamfenance and operations - - - -
Student transportation 10,000 34,550 27,572 6,978
Central support services - - - -
Other support services - - 1821 {1.821)
Other non-instructional services 227,000 - - -
Community service - - - -
Capital cutlay : ) - - - -
Debt service: _
Principal retirement - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Total expenditures 1,307 44) 2,754,631 1,463.688 1,290,943
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - (39,500) (50,939) 8,561
Other financing sources {uses):
Sale of capital assets - - - -
Transfer in - 59,500 1,691 (57,809)
Transfer out - - ~ -
Total ather financing sources (uses} . - 59,500 1,691 (57,809)
Net change in fund balances 5 - $ - b (49.248) 3 {49,248)
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Clayton County Board of Education
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Student Activities Agency Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2006 Additions Deductions Juse 30, 2007
Agsets:
Cash and investments $ 386022 § 2003040 $ 2000845 § 388,226
Liabilities:
Due to student organizations:
" Elementary Schools: .

Anderson £ 47 $ 9,991 $ 2,902 3 135
Amold 4351 3,976 5,571 2,751
Brown 2,981 15,928 15,029 3,880

Callaway 252 110,227 11,217 (738)
Church St 1,224 16,294 16,487 1,031
East Clayton 3,077 13,797 13,716 3,159
Edmonds 539 3,098 2,740 897

Elementary 11 - - - -

Fountain 205 1,972 1,928 249
Harper 2,544 10,158 10,758 2,345
“Hawthorne 2,695 17,949 18,713 1,931
Haynie 3,626 10,040 9,123 4,543
Hendrix Dr 3,710 4,245 3,743 4,212
Huie 1,454 12,540 10,253 3,740
Jackson 808 133758 13,035 1,148
Kemp 838 6,314 7,139 i3
Kemp Primary 128 2,704 2,944 89
Kilpatrick 2,309 4,300 5,204 1,406
King ' 359 12,857 11,483 1,733
Lake City 505 3,803 3,571 - 797

Lake Ridge 546 3,119 3,696 G1)
Lee Street 2,524 16,357 9,175 3,706
Marshall 593 7,508 7,385 715
McGamah 7503 19,599 21,544 5,558
Morrow 1,002 6,046 5,970 1,167

Mt Zian 68 9,129 14,158 o (4,962)
Northcutt 1,343 21,077 20,338 2,083
Oliver (3,491) 24,207 20,001 715
Pointe South ) 2,914 5,321 7,882 353
Riverdale 442 2,134 I.868 - 708
Rivers Edge . 3,006 26,687 28,042 1,650
Smith : 4,164 26,981 28,964 2,181
Suder 4,777 17,742 16,752 5,767
Swint 3,864 4,254 3,706 4,412
Tara 3,861 5,691 5,728 3,824
West Clayton . 454 6,465 6,752 170
TFotal elementary schools . 65,913 369,950 374,519 61,343

{continued}
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Clayton: County Board of Education
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Student Activities Agency Fund

"

Year Ended Fune 30, 2007
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2006 Additions Deductions June 30, 2007
Liabilities {continued):
Due to student organizetions (continued):
Middle Schools: '
Adamson $ 6,974 B 14,660 $ 15,281 $ 6,354
Babb 11,397 77,787 81,291 7.803
Forest Park 1,391 12,875 11,876 2,390
Jonesboro 20,821 39,711 - 37,750 22,782
Kendrick 17437 50,611 57,560 10,48%
Lovejoy 2,023 67,841 66,952 3,813
Mormrow 5,174 29549 25,505 9,212
Mundys Mill 986G 35,715 22,527 14,234
Notth Clayton 4,519 75,901 77,078 3,342
Painte South 1.914 34,533 32,065 4,381
Rex Mill - 30,538 23,960 6,578
Riverdale 5,279 39,234 42,138 2,375
Roberts 4,617 80,155 74,700 10,073
Seqroyah 1,675 19,216 17,750 3,141
Total middle schools 85,107 60R,381 586,432 107,056
High Schools and Special Purpose Programs:

Eorest Park 27,753 95212 92,517 30,443
Jonesboro 17,111 81,787 74,401 25,158
Lovegjoy 18,138 194,775 184,159 28,754
Momrow 39472 178,999 170,673 41,799
Mount Zion 25,552 127,328 113,710 39171
Mundy's Mill 31,455 159,443 179,385 11,513
North Calvton 15,036 71,153 71,252 14,937
Riverdale 20,950 112,800 107,443 26,308
Alernative 123 584 685 22

Foreat Park Vocational 8,7 - 8,791 -

Jonesboro Vocational 421 - 4,22]

Lovejoy Vocational 7.686 - 7,686 -

Momrow Vocational 6,731 - 6,731 -

Mt. Zion Vocational 5487 342 5,829 -

Riverdale Vocational 4,959 - 4,959 -
South Metro 876 2,204 £.453 1,718

Total high schools and special .

PUTPOSE Programs 235,002 1024718 1,039,894 219,826
Total due to student organizations 386,022 2,003,049 2,000,845 388,226
Total liabilities $ 386,022 3 2,003,049 ¥ 2,000,845 5 388,226
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Statistical Section

Clayton County
~ Public Schools




Statistical Section
(unaudited)

The statistical section presents detailed information as a context for understanding what
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Board’s overall financial position.

Contents:

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Board’s
financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
" These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Board’s major revenue

SOUL'CCs.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

Board’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Board’s ability to issue additional debt
in the firture,

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the Board’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain siaffing, key operating statistics comparisons and capital asset

data to help the reader understand how the information in the Board’s financial report
relates to the services the Board provides and the activities it pexforms.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION - ’

Net Assets by Component .

Last Four Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)
Fisecal Invested in -
Year Ended capital assets . Total
June 30, net of related debt Restricted Unresfricted Net Assets
2004 $ 265,677,512 $ 46,810,178 $ 31.415,154 $ 315,902,344 .
2005 294,769,145 49,730,079 10,276,117 354,775,341
2006 312,268,008 80,930,059 20,233,916 413,431,983 :

2007 364,805,589 73,248,770 53,352,595 491,506,954
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Clayten Conaty Board of Education

Changes in Not Assets
Last Foor Fiscal Years
Pt 205 2006 2007
Expenses:
Govemmentsl sctivitics
Instructianal services 259,438,RE8 H 200,459 80,507,442 284,656,020
Papif services 8,236,161 190,510 9,586,304 12,30, 30
Inctuctional etaff 10,932,517 16,019,905 LS 447052 22,558,292
Educativanl media services 6,504,893 5,356,554 6,579,784 6,930,008
General administration 4061884 3,556,380 1664557 4,500,647
Szhoo! adminisiration 19,687,094 20,235,069 21,061,645 21 414,698
Business admuinistratioa 10,253 1,469,535 20Ta9LL 21,265
Meintensnce snd eperstions 15388187 25,710,642 7537489 28,614,235
Pupif traneportation 14,880,892 14,985,960 17,705,290 22332 626
Support services - central 8435183 8,347,455 8,514,016 E,059,973
COitber support services EL119.304 LM ST 2508914 730,189
Mos-insntctions| services 1,169,936 1,451,483 [.295,127 1,158,475
Community services 9,014,584 9,744,508 10,554,573 1,279,962
Inierest £59,034 130.9% 62,593 15603
Food Services - . - -
~ Toual paver | actvities exp 310363, 740 396, 767430 408,131.797 435,575,233
Business-{ype activitics
Echaal feod servize 10,263,181 21231337 29, TT2A68 25,031,796
Performing arts center 417,573 277598 307,175 328,632
Tatal lusiness-4ype activities expenses 20670674 2E,508.728 24 079 643 15360478
Tolat primary governament expenses m&ﬁu H SH2T6165 132.211440 460,933,711
Program Revermues
Governmantal actlvities
Chatpes for servitas:
Irstmrctionz! services 13,225,303 H 11,551,965 10,365,020 L8057t
Pupil scivices 1582103 - 116,125 8,415
Bstuctional stafl - - - 10,455
Support seevice: - ceatral - - - 140
Cither suppar: services 498,875 5% 37633 566
Naminstructional screices 434437 438,088 423363 13,306 484
Comumninity ssrvices £,963 900 T219,101 8,165,405 5,388,620
Uperating grants and contribuiions:
Tostructional services 158,614,569 72660605 175,822,013 194,955,512
Fupll services 3672957 kN rieryd 3347847 5,055,282
Insractionz] staft 5,650,055 10,763,481 16,723, RE8 10,056,464
Educatignal medis scrvices 3.633.262 4,029,657 4277109 4763009
General administretion 1,918,392 © 1,230,776 2,025,376 2,158 23%
School adminisiraion 434,084 567,209 3275510 B.769,.853
Howmess administration 335,467 363,500 613,135 654,530
Mamtenance sod operations 12,438,197 12875167 12,964,693 E3, 186473
Pupil trasp oration 2,854,252 3,095,062 3,132,515 4,153,936
Suppoet sarvices - central £324.155 2,456,442 2,233,145 2,269,502
Cither enppont atrvices 590,162 641,769 526214
Non-ingtroctioeal services 21,085 436,145 139,523 425,063
Communily sorvices - 2,303,024 2,073,423 2,518,975
Capital grants and contributions:
Tusbuctional services 13330193 1,703,636 7,150,175 7,378,103
Tatal gvernmental Activitics revenues 37002147 MM 253,284,187 276,042,040




Clayton County Board of Edueation

Changes in Met Assets
Last Four Fiscal Years
{continued)
2004 2005 2006 w7
Basiness-type scifvities
Charges for gervices
Schonl food service 4,75T462 4,030,513 3,744.923 3,104,247
Perfiming arts cener 220,566 208,009 188,838 213,015
Operzting geants and coniributinns
Srhool food service 16,699,12% 1R.428,126 20,975.820 21527062
Total business-type activities propram revenpes 21,677,157 - 221,367,648 24,909,581 24,874,324
Total pritsary SovEramENt progrum rcvenmes $ 258,679,304 3 267,041,761 5 278,193,768 $ 300.916.364
Net{ExpanseyRevenue
Govermmental Axtivitics 3 < eenf 133,361 ,593) 3 (A2 8 ufISAR4TEI0 % oAlSD.533,19%
Business-type activites 1,006 483 1,358,913 829,038 {486,154
Todal primsery govement net expense (£32,355,110) il 51.234.404; {154.0!7.6??.! slmiomi;q!
Generzl revenites and aber changes i net assels
Property taxes 3 4,327,752 H 125,858,373 ¥ 122,804,927 g E4R. 448,796
Sales 1anes 46,165,205 30,642,568 34,411,508 53,535,851
Ciier tames 6,909 348 6,303,391 6,973,978 7,109,591
Non-program specifio
state and federal 2d 5,905,282 5,298,139 16,894,461 17,409,359
Local school activity (219,122 §41,9C1 2,649,154 4,036,302
Etperest and investment camngs 574,743 1483671 2,550,941 5,991,393
Cain on 5ale of assests 34T
Towl governmenta] aclivitics 175,961 432 193,128,045 207,515,598 237,608,164
Business-type activities:
Interest and immstment earmrg,s
School food service 62,339 156,319 356,087 526,739
Total busimegstype acthvities 339 156,319 336087 526,739
Totel primavy govenoeut 3 1 Tﬁ.ﬂ!ﬁ!gl H I 93.;94.364 § 207,871,475 5 238,134,903
{Chanes in Het Asseis
Govemmental activities -3 42,599,859 5 40,534,728 11 52,667,978 1 TR.0%4,571
Businesstype activilies 1,060,122 1,524,232 1,186,025 40,585
Total primary govemment £ 43,660,181 ] 43,059,960 H 53,854,003 $ T8.03556

Nate: FYI0H Sraramens of Govenmment Activities was reststed in FY 2004
Note: FY2005 Statement of Govemmens Activitics was resated in FY2006
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year General Fund

Ended Unreserved Unreserved

Juxe 30, Reserved Designated Undesignated Total

1598 h3 600,000 3§ - § 21,492,586 $ 22,092586

1999 600,000 - 27,423,290 28,025,290

2000 65,233 - 23,407,203 23,472,436

2001 190,233 - 25,123,082 25,315,315

2002 190,233 - 30,710,085 30,900,319

2003 492414 - 16,301,637 16,794,051

2004 - - 2,064,580 2,064,580

2005 - - 9,690,850 9,690,850

2006 - - 14,087,652 14,087,652

2007 2,376,397 - 44,782 463 47,158,860

Fiscal Year All Other Gavernmental Fuads

Ended Unreserved

June 36, Reserved Special Revenue Capital Projects  Debt Service Total
1998 3 24667469 $ 2989511 $ - b3 - ¥ 27,656,980
199¢ 38,751,674 4,257,062 - - 43,008,735
2000 38,505,613 4,393,764 - - 42,899,377
2001 39,152,208 4,958,341 - - 44,110,549
2002 38,067,675 5,556,432 - - 43,624,107
2003 46,042,756 5,968,798 - - 52,011,554
2004 46,810,178 3,119,748 - - 49929925
2005 49,730,079 3,340,797 - - 53,070,876
2006 80,930,059 3,093,521 - - 84,023,580
2007 73,348,770 3,595,866 ' - - 76,944,636
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Clayton County Board of Education

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chanpes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds Last Six Fiscal Years

¥ ear Bnded June 30, 2007
2002 2003__ 2004 2005 2006 2007
Revenues:
Locak sonrces § 173,681,674  $ 173865444 $ 184,617,978 & 201,472,266 5 199,691,918 § 234,166,296
Stats sources W6, 752,581 215,148,335 206,489,764 201,194,248 222,686,415 246474492
Federsl sources 27,752,457 33,655,899 24,545,613 38,720,305 30,547,241 30,671,202
Total revenues 408,187,012 422,670,178 415,653,355 441 336,819 461,925,574 520,312,087
Expendltures:
Current:
Insrcticnat services 224,390,871 250,693, 2% 258 625,347 250,960,037 263,210,908 276,138,697
Pugit sexvices 7,454,054 7,865,132 8,188,368 7.065,497 9,576,198 £2,188,388
Tpravenent of indrectional services 7,639,450 10,888,732 10,863,587 16,030,498 16,361,60% 22,610,922
Educationst media services 6,086,938 5,171,007 6,493,723 6,849,810 6,569,947 691,917
Genersl administration 3,423 482 3 840, 465 3907327 3423 245 3429 395 4,437,125
School administration 18,583,335 18,341,628 19,569,553 20,107.37¢ 20,911,160 21.971.990
Basinass services 1,223,830 1,594,995 1,284,832 1465962 1,992,348 2,725,317
Maintenance and eperaiions 22,362,626 24,847,734 25376816 25,747,334 27,285,453 28257473
Student trnspostation 11,015,544 13,391,076 16,183,916 13,219,495 14,997,106 20,307,028
Central support services 5,496,321 7,828,157 7,840,540 7,164,566 7,565,608 14,320,703
Other support services 1,187,042 737,588 1.I17.683 1,210,580t 2,500,260 2,725,447
On behalf payments - - 3,150,426 3311,53L .622,873 7,227,583
Other non-nstructional services - £330 1,167,078 1,451,522 1,296,284 1.i58,911
DUy service - TENOT98 “UETINI0A TTTO099, 024 T3 ETO 1.k 10,251,046
Capital outlay 71,192,528 62,363,856 51,763,317 49744718 30,580,662 62,254,348
Foad Serviges 18,572,856 20,000,688 - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement 680,000 - 1,980,887 24031,283 2,077,328 1,420,440
Interest and fiscal charges 18,591 - 159,034 110,996 62,593 15,605
Total expenditores 406,337 966 416,301,420 426,772,513 430,565,59¢ 426,591,355 404,032,054
Frccess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendilures 1,348,045 (13,631,242 {11.119.163) 10,767,220 35,334,219 24,279,133
Giler financing sources (uses)
Procends from capita! icases - 7,900,000
Sale of capitat assets - - - - 15,287 104,851
Transfer in 16,741,761 25,619,622 320,74% 1,768 3356 951,842 gren
Transfers out {16.719,894) (25.607,203) (320, 749) (1.768.836) (§51,842) (774,442)
Total other finaneing sonrees (uses) 21,867 7912410 - - 15,287 (286,859}
Net change it fund batances 1,870,913 5,718,823} (11.119,163) 10,767,220 35340506 35,992,264
Fund balances - beginning of year 72,653,513 74.524.428 63,113,669 51994506 $2,761.726 98,111,232
Fond halances - end of year $ 74524426 3 68,805,608 § 51994506 § 62,761,726 § 98,113,232 £ 124,103,496
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EYHICATION
Assersad Valnt and Ertbnated Actoot Vidae of Tazabe Propenty
Eagt Ten Tox Yeous

(Unamtited - i1 Theusawds)
Manintenance and Qperations
Deeember M, 1958 through 2007

Beal & Prrman Frbvaisly Grand Waior Velcies =

Fropety Fublle Deilitisa izt Mahile Flam t Tobul Sekwal Boprd Ansand

=] Fximted Extimaid ] Fa Volarng s
Tax Arsered Actua] Aciesel Aciul Amecani Actat Az Aciual Thx feryex Assotsed Tatal Potniageal
You Nihs Vs Valgh Vil Vahe Malue Valuo Value _Bwmptons hil") Widngs Rate Taxlevy Al Valua
1958 4B ILHATIE b 8 1307, 48 L] 1,164,953 082006 V,TIE. 51500 97 415241 117 c T4 0.00%
1998 4250294 [Fi%) -] I3TAS3 11ah 73 36400 42,200 3567 VLA11 587 50 TELTI A2 956 el 5 RO,TSH 00
2000 440,634 1L.R2&A10 SERE0S 142459 ot 15 1,481,655 3555115 LNkl 75 AT ARFLELE a0ial 5 15207 000
2001 494051 1,853 550,508 1,421 470 &5 1,564,443 L1 L) 1437139000 w2 5195460 2079 8 43,154 0000
2 3 ni618 13,096,805 W29 1,757,410 G570 1,141,125 6513 16 RELE R0 5,740,150 e £ sl 0005
2003 EE: ¥ bi] 14,151,558 8,7 1.5m.528 AESH 1,T6%,425 Tidaa64 128 35.R10,00 868157 6265107 ¥ Hing S0
0 SMR0E 15.04%5(5 19616 1.599,040 Y504 LTS TATIL MG 18.490.290.00 FibE ] 6 564,650 LHA? § TH, 1% 9000
200§ X TAM 155 H038 I 137,598 [alEE.S 157130 TH4265 190606625 44091 6679052 paigg % KM 00%
06 405509 16.50857 HHHE 2034095 35210 1490585 LR ET 10,0925 LM TR A6 Dmse § 13,514 Lt
g TIORS 14 | TSL53S 501, M6 323365 [ 1% JE11%51H RAS3508 21432, 770.00 I THTISH oA § 124 BN

Source: Propeny Tax Division, Claywoo CoomyTax Dommission

Heew: Tl Trosble Astonncd Valpe
1 owanpiion for such propeny.

d by wedcing tho fair

7



Clayton County Board of Education

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{rale per 81,000 of assessed wriue}

18

Ovarlanping Rates
District Diroct Ratew State Cliyof  Cityof City City
Fiscal School Debt of Coflege Farast of of
Yaar M& O Service Total Georgia Park Park Morrow Riverdals
1698 ] B0 3 - $ 18340 3 0%50 § 7500 § 3od0 § - % 1.000
1999 45,240 - 18.340 0.250 7.000 3.040 - 1.000
2000 17818 - 17416 0.250 8930 3.043 - 1.000
sl izl 17.018 - 17216 0.250 6.610 3443 - 5,060
2002 18.518 - 12916 0.250 8.560 5043 - 6.500
2003 18.018 - 18916 0250 9.560 5.043 - 6.500
2004 18.016 - 15816 0.250 9,560 4.753 4000 7.500
05 18.918 - 18916 0.260 8.580 4.793 4.000 7.500
2006 20000 - 20000 0.250 9.580 6.580 4000 7.500
2007 20000 - 20000 0250 9.560 6.5603 4.000 7.500
Overlapping Ralas (conffnved
City of J h City of City of City Claytor County Board of Commissioners
Fiscal Fire Lake LovaJoy of Debt
‘Yaar UMET " Distrist " Chty U Firs Bisliet  Riverdale HED Service Total
1838 k3 - |3 - § - $ - § 1000 £ 3870 (0560 $ 3410
1069 - - . . 1.000 4110 - 4110
2000 - - - - 1.00¢ 3813 - 3913
2001 - - . - 5.000 4047 - 4.047
2002 - . - 4.207 8.500 B.A82 - 5.882
2003 - - - 3.900 8.500 1.1 - S.882
2004 - 3.900 5.686 3.800 7.500 7781 - 7.78%
2006 3.000 3.900 5885 3.900 7.500 7781 - 7781
2008 3.000 3.900 o758 3.900 7.500 a.784 - BG4
2007 3.000 3.500 5758 3.900 7.500 8.754 - B.764



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

December 31, Deeember 31,
2006 1997
®TEE Percent of Percent of
Taxable District's Total Taxable District's Total
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Taxpayer Value Rank Value(l) Value Rank Value (1)

Delta Airlines, Inc. $ 722437875 1 R35% § 593,246,107 4 11.66%
City of Afania 1 10,32;.4,1 75 2 1.27% 16,887,649 10 0.33%
Atlantic Southeast 100,810,587 3 1.16% - 0.00%
Georgia Power Co. 91,223,728 4 1.05% 82,840,394 2 1.63%
Air Tran Airways 77,601,947 5 0.90% . 0.00%
AMB Partricrs 49,002,318 6 0.57% - 0.00%
Conair 41,807,123 7 048% - 0.00%
BeliSouth 41,556,772 8 048% 41,439,757 4 081%
Adlanta Gas Light 33,024,918 9 0.38% 28,841,480 6 057%
JC Penny 25,795,540 0 0.30% 30,524,829 5 0.60%
Alamo (2) - 0.00% 17,424,472 9 0.34%
Heriz (2) - _ 0.00% 20,946,529 8 0.41%
Southlake Mall (2) - 0.00% 49,014,335 3 0.96%
Northwest Airlines (2) - 0.00% 27,739,668 7 0.55%
Subtotal (1D largest) $ 1,293,674,983 14.95% % 908,505,220 17.87%
Balance of all others 7,359,833 542 85.05%  $4,178,501.043 82%
Total 3 8.6535508;525 100%  §5,087.406,263 100%

Source: Clayton County Assessor and State Tax Commission

" (L) District s total taxable veloe for 1997 $ 4,624,792,000

(2} Not cousidered amang the top axpeyers in 2006
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Tax Years

Fiscal Taxes Levied ’i‘o’ml Collections te Date
Year Ended For The Percentage
December 31, Calendar Yesr Amount of Levy
1997 $ 78,876,507 $ 74,667,666 94.66% ;
1998 19824377 76,673,692 96.05% -
1999 §4.614,813 85,823,817 101.43% {1}
2000 39,822312 87,952,570 87.92% -
2001 93,153,514 85,935,097 92.25% )
2002 103,021,471 104,235,822 101,18% (1)
2003 112,3 19,107 103,992 925 92.59% '
2004 124,176,153 114,042,199 91.84%
2005 126,245,111 . 124,651,272 98.66%
2006 133,573,934 1 13;,287,628 84.81%

Source: Clayton County Treasurer's Office (includes property tax and motor vehicle fee in liew).
Nete: This schedule recognizes collections on a calendar year (tax year) basis, whereas property tax
collections reported in the basic financial stalements are on a fiscal year basis.

(1) Includes some prioe vear tax levy
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Clayton County Board of Education

Schedule of Revenaes by Source
Gavernmental Funds Lest Ten Flscal Years
Year Eaded Juns 30, 2007
2 3 2004 5 2006 2007

Beveowes: .

Loral soarces B O17368167 5 17365444 § 184617978 § 20472286 199,601,M8 $ 234,166,206

State sources 206,752,881 215,148,835 206,489,764 201,144,248 12 ER6415 245.474,493

Federal sonfoes 27,752 457 33,635 892 24,545,613 38,710,305 39,547,241 30,671,202

Interest eammed om investments - -

On behaif payments - -

Qthér sonmeea - M - . - -

Tolal reveouez 408,187,012 _ 22670118 415,653,155 441,26419 461925074 520,3 2,087

Noie: S of B , Exp ek, and Changes in Fund Balanees Governmontal Futde were oot vepatted
prior to FY2002 '
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

* See Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics

*** The School System had ne outstanding General Obligation Bonded debt after 2001

g2

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type e
As of June 30, 2007
General | Total Percentage
Capitat Obligation Primary of Personal Per
Fiscial Year Lease Bonds Govamment Income* Capita®
1998 1,251,204 $17,370,000 $ 18,621,204 0.43% 84
1999 1,826,295 $,870,000 11,696,295 ' 0.25% 51
2000 919,919 3,840,000 4,759,918 0.10% 20
2001 356,208 680,000 = 1,036,208 0.02% 4
2002 163,487 - 165,487 0.00% 1
2003 7,560,883 - 7,560,993 0.15% 29
2004 5,580,106 - 5,580,106 0.11% 21
2005 3,648,823 - 3,548,823 0.07% 13
2006 1,471,495 - 1,471,495 0.03% 5
2007 51,055 - 51,055 0.00% 0
Notes:



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2007
Percentage
Applicable o
Estimated Clayton County Amount Applicable
Outstanding Board of to Clayton County
Debt Education Board of Educalion
ct Debf
. Clayton County Board of Education $ 651,005 100% $ 551,005
Overlapping Debt
Clayton County 27,443 000 100% % 27,443,000
Landfilt Authority 14,315,000 100% 3 14,315,000
41,758,000 [ 41,758,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 42,309,005 ] 42,309,005

Source: 2007 Claylon County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

- - b Legal Debt Margin Information ' -
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Flscal Year
1988 1995 2000 201 2002 2003

Debt fimit $ 475242820 3 436515552 5 500826701 $ B3N7B7M80 § 50,081,328  § 644,655,196
Total net debt applicable to imit 2,100,000 102,396,000 $2,015,000 55,550,600 27,046,000 -
Legal deb{ margin $ 478342822 § £38.010.552 5 302841,701 $ 587,347,180 § £7.006,328 § 644,653,196
Total net deit applicable to the
limit as a parcentage of debt limle 0.65% 21.05% 16.38% 10.45% 47,32% 0.00%
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Debt bmit
Total net dekt applicable to Timilt
L.egal deb! margin

Total net deit applicable 1o the
limit as a percentage of debi Amit

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Legal Debt Margin Information (continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2664 2005 2006 2007,
§ B78.984,575 § BS0,157,387 % 730,100,335 $ T3, TAT.347

§ 676084575 § BO0,157,387 § 720,100335 § 794,727,347

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Legal Dett Margin Calculztion for Flseal Year 2007

- Assessed Valug* & 7.937,273,470

Debt Limit {10% of assessed value)™ 793,727,347
Debt applicable o limit
Gengral obligation bonds -
Totsd net deht applicable to limit .
Legat dabi mangin . § 703,727,347
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Clayton County Board of Education
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years.
Per Capita County
Calendar Personsl Income® Personal Unemployment
Year Population* {in thousands) Income Rate*+*
1998 222970 5 4374970 b 19.621 3. 7%
1999 229,970 4 587,540 19,948 3.6
2000 238,500 4,821,540 20,216 19
2001 248,060 4 882 680 19,683 40
2002 253,480 4.942 960 19,500 6.6
2003 259,740 5,127,060 19,739 6.8
2004 252,930 5,283,080 20,093 4.6
2005 266,290 5,437,080 20,418 5.9
2006 272,600 5,460,710 20,032 5.1
2007 . .274,220 . &,535480 24,198 47

* Woods & Poole Economics Data Pamphlet 2007
*#% Georgia Department of Labor / Clayton County Chamber of Commerce
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Source: Clayton County Chamber of Commerce

Total employment in Clayton County for 1998 was 114,185 and in 2007, was 132,362,

87

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
December 31, December 31,
2007 1998
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Number of . County Number of County
Taxpayer Employees Rank Employment  Employees Rank Employment
Delta Airines, Inc 16,515 1 12.48% 23,318 1 20.42%
Clayton County School System 7,300 2 552% 3,800 2 5.08%
U.S. Army at Fort Gillem 3419 3 2.58% 3,161 3 2.77%
Southern Regional Medical Center 2,569 4 1.94% 1,800 5 1.58%
Clayton County Government 1,935 5 1.46% 1,800 [3 1.58%
Clayion Cellege & Stafte University 1,500 6 113% - - 0.00%
“rafresh-Express G50 7 CEYFY% - - =:00%
ToTo US.A,, Inc. 450 8 0.34% - - 0.00%
Hextsfield-Jackson Atlants Airport 400 b 0.30% - - 0.00%
ATET (former BeliSouth) 390 10 0.29% - - 0.00%
Atlanta Sfate Parmers' Market - - 0.00% 2,000 4 1.75%
J.C_Penney - - 0.00% 1,617 7 1.42%
Souﬂﬂ;ake Mall - - 0.00% 1,500 & 1.31%
Northwest Aitlines - - 0.00% 1,496 9 1.31%
Georgia Department of Revenne - - 0.00% 1,300 1] 1.14%
Tutals 35,528 26.33% 43,792 38.36%



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDDCATION

Student Ethnicicy Statlstics
Last Ten Years
Bux Rece 1980 1990 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2506 2007
Femdle  Amedgan indian/Alaskan Netive a7 28 o 30 23 23 23 23 22
Astan, Pecific klander 812 982 1,006 1,021 1,050 1.048 1,077 1,067 1,056 1061
Black, ot of Hispanic origin 11,424 12835 13791 14,988 15080 16904 17,757 16,289 15,021 18843
Hespanlc 738 801 1,088 1,350 1,662 1.958 2,288 2,610 2962 MM
Mulbivacial 451 535 814 670 737 brid 778 aH 857 064
White, not of Hispanie arigin 7.272 8445 5,588 4,857 4082 3371 2,790 2,716 1760 1355
Sub Total 20,810 21496 22,10 22474 23534 24,471 M 258 2EG4E 25224
Mala Amarican ndlen/Alaskan Nativa 23 0 24 25 23 20 21 1% 23 2
Asian, Paslfie slander 1017 1,404 1124 1,435 1173 1176 1,160 1,163 1966 1157
Black. nod of Higpanic orlgin 1"773 12673 14138 15407 16448 17511 13,485 18795 19,605 19985 :
Hispanic a1 085 1,186 1,430 1,783 2182 2,584 2,968 3264 3387 -
Multi-acial 47 &7 &3 ns 701 a5z ] 897 sx 930
While, not of Hispanie erigin 7.765 8.813 8,008 5,244 5,478 3,732 3,083 2544 2026 1514
. « Sub Total ez i - fine tud B8 . 20423 - s 2,08 - 263TF -0, ZRB0Y. . 20T
System Totaf 42884  A4hes 45266 46930 40292 49584 S0S35  S1408 52487 Baesy

Source:  Georgie Depariment of Education Website




CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Student Enroflment Statistics

Last Ten Years
Official State
Year _ Average Average October 1
Ended Daily Daily Attendance Enrollment
June 30, Membership Attendanece Percentage Couni
1998 : 42,214 39,386 93.30% 42,684
1999 43,363 40,371 93.10% 44,068
2000 44,8097 41,805 93.30% 45,266
2001 46,502 43,433 93.40% 46,930
2002 47,716 44,805 93.90% 48,232
203 4B RIR 45344 94 00% 49,594
2004 48,583 45,717 94.10% 50,555
2005 50,914 48,612 94.30% 51,405
2006 51,905 . 48,947 94.30% 52,657
2007 52,261 50,013 95.70% : 52,533
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Teachers' Base Salaries
Last Ten Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR  MINIMUM SALARY MEDIAN SALARY MAXIMUM SALARY PERCENT CHANGE

1998 $27,782 $42,572 $57,361 5.51%
1999 $29,215 $44,874 $60,532 5.53%
2000 : $30,228 $46,525 $62,821 3.78%
2601 $31,018 $47,825 $64,631 2.88%
2002 $32,238 $49,796 $67,353 4.21%
2003 $33,159 $51,300 $69,441 3.10%
2004 $34,059 $52,200 $70,341 1.30%
2005 $34,449 $53,435 $72,422 2.96%
2606 3524 o B54,900 T 756 322%
2007 $38,859 $58,130 $77,400 3.54%
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

History of High School Graduates

X Last Ter School Years
Forest i Moamt  Mundy's Nowth

School Park Jonesbore  Lovejoy Morrow  Zion Mill Clayton Riverdate Alternative

Year High High . _ High Migh High High High High Programs Tetal
1998 185 223 | 340,00 286 278 - 19% 196 4 1,710
1995 198 271 | 361 226 238 - 172 234 - 1,692
2000 227 263 338 280 252 - 191 208 i 1,760
2001 231 300 400 276 265 - 191 246 Z 1911
2002 241 232 456 315 301 - 207 2652 2 2,068
2003 239 323 485 362 273 - 40 285 p:A 2,209
2004 208 346 - 475 i34 286 4 357 318 5 2,233
2005 219 279 321 33! 295 119 249 263 h] 2,287
2006 224 3ts 350 360 285 46 246 345 1 2,533
2007 232 293 3 30 iy 74 254 303 8 2,465
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Nuirition Services - Facts and Figures

Nots: Information is not available for Fiscal Year 1998

Last Nine Fiscal Yems
! Year Ending June 36, .
21999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007

Mumbet of schools ,

participating in: '

Luxnch - regular schedule 48 49 49 50 52 54 57 58 59
Lunch - year round
Breakfast program 48 49 49 50 52 54 57 58 b

Student hmeches served:

Free 2,762,181 2,855,878 3,054,285 3,353,373 3,548,170 3,988,217 4,361,509 4,964,652 5,004,162
Rediced ' 684,003 780,561 BEI771 053,130 LO75,147 1,041,779 1,022,892 873,018 864,873
Fully paid 2022349 2036381 27209910 2,164,857 2138718 1951825 1762341 598251 1431720

Total 547,433 5672822 6145975 6471360 6,762,035 698182} 7,146,742 7435921 7,390,755

Adult lunches served 234,907 256,744 260,700 265,811 277827 288,583 251,683 236,721 359,700

Student breakiasts served:

““Freg CRYENST? T2AGBAT CTZETIEY TIDESSE CCUABAEII ULEBYER CLO0LBI3 CZIRIIGT T 2325198
Reduced 165,029 191,174 214,339 243,955 281,371 277,304 292261 269 025 272,792
Fully paid 199,198 212546 249555 280618 300474 207873 290,479 301,172 293284

Total 1,557,404 1 .670967 1,151,237 193,129 2046458 27256941 2484373 2,752,559  2.B91.204

Number of serving days:

Regnlar schedule 228 179 179 180 L8{} 179 196 197 195
Year-round schednle - .
Weiphted average 228.00 179.00 179.00 [80.00 180.00 179.00 196.00 157.30 194.70

-Average datly participation:

Student lunch 23,993 311,682 34,335 35,952 37,567 39,005 16,463 37,688 37,960
Adult lunch 1,030 1,434 1,456 LATT 1,543 £612 1,284 1,200 1,847
Student brezkiast 6,831 9,332 9,783 14,734 18,369 12,609 13,675 13,951 14,850

Cetober 1 pupil count 44,068 45266 46,232 48,232 49,594 50,555 51,405 52,657 49,479

(Kinderparten not included)

Petcentape of students daily .
eating school hinch 54.45% 0.01% T427% T4.54% 75.75% T1.E15% 70.93% T.57% 76.72%

October 1 count of bensfits

Students on free lunch 15,7587 15,305 17.63% 18,957 20,040 22,369 24,623 27,803 28,538

Student on reduced lunch 3980 4,587 5,122 5488 6,273 6,029 5,939 5,038 5,092

Percentage of stutents on: -

Free funch 35.76% 35.02% 38.15% 39.30% 40.41% 45.24% 47.90% 52.80% 57.68%
Reduced lunch D.03% 10.13%% 11.08% 10.38% 12.65% 11.93% 11.55% 9.57% 10.29%
Total 44.79% 46.15% 49.23% 50.68% 53.06% 37.16% 59.45% 623T% 67.97%



hoot
Elcmentary
Anderson (1€77)
Square feel
Capachy
Enroliment
Amold {12632}
Square feet
Capacity
Enrolivment
Brown (1975)
Square fest
Capaclty
Enrollmerd
Callaway (2001}
Square feet
Capacity
Enrcliment
Chureh St (1966)
-'»-{mswmt
Capacity
Enrolimant
East Claytan (19568)
Souars fest
Cepacity
Enrofiment
Edmoruts {1957)
Square feet
Cepecky
Ensoliment
Fountzin {1852)
Square fect
Capacity
Enroliment
Hauper (2002)
Sguare feat
Cagacity
Enroilnent

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Note: "X represent the year the building did not exist.

03

: Schoal Building Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
i
i _ Fiscal Year '
998 | 1w 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
44044 54221 54,221 54,221 54,231 54,221 54,221 54,221 54,221 54,221
362 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450
412 422 422 449 500 455 449 450 807 519
50671 60,871 50,874 STA7T 87,177 87,177 BTATT 57,177 571477 57477
M3 413 413 500 500 500 500 800 500 500
504 802 502 482 467 418 508 506 510 520
81,615 81,615 81,815 81815 81,615 81,616 81,815 81,615 81,815 B1,615
750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750
B53 B46 845 903 83 1014 1,030 843 815 796
x X x 81,014 01,014 91,014 81,014 1,014 $1.014 105404
- - - 726 726 725 725 725 728 00
- - - - 777 B72 ga2 866 896 021
onBGHE8  BOOBB  -:ao8HB68 o FBBE1 . ~@B861 - -o.7BBS1 - 7661  ..FBES1 78651 78851
88 83 688 825 B25 825 825 025 825 825
208 1.044 1,044 1,083 1,001 1,018 908 208 920 943
81,730 §1.739 68,818 66818 9,318 86,818 B8.618 B8.818 68,318 £8.618
650 €50 €50 650 650 650 650 650 50 650
on 748 746 art 862 915 867 570 &N 849
50,604 50,604 50,604 57,307 57,307 57.307 57,307 57.307 §7,307 57,307
413 413 413 450 450 450 450 450 450 450
566 482 482 494 478 478 468 445 448 470
68,965 8,985 68,965 68,965 68,965 68,985 68,965 68,965 62,965 £8,965
650 650 850 450 850 650 850 550 650 650
785 859 859 2872 M6 050 584 568 537 499
x X x x 91.014 91,014 91,014 . 91,014 91,014 94,014
. . - - 725 725 725 725 725 725
- - - - 78B4 fBd B0O 81t ax 817



Hawthorme {1908}
Equare feet
Caparity
Enrofiment

Haynle (1968}
Square feet
Capacity
Enraliment

Handrix (1865)
Square feel
Capacity
Enncliment

Huie (1988)
Squere feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Jarkson (2003}
Square feel
Capaclly
Enrotiment

Kemp {1981)
Square feet
Capaclly
Enrcliment

Kemp Primary{2004)

' Square feet
Capaclty
Enroliment

Kilpatrick (1973}
Souare feat
Capacity
Ensallment

King (2003)
Square feet
Capacity
Enrolirment

L ake City {1957)
Square feet
Capacity
Enrgliment

Lake Rldge {1994}
Square faet
Capacity
Erwoilmernt

Note: "X represent the year the bullding did not exist,

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Building Information (continued)

Last Ten Kiscal Years
Fiscal Year

1998 1333 2000 2001 2002 2008 204 20 2008 2007
85,226 89,225 89,226 88,226 89,229 88,225 89,228 89,228 89,226 102,600
738 738 738 738 T 798 738 73e 738 738 B
- 783 783 a50 880 42 914 B8 94¢ a58
62,247 62,347 74107 72,107 72,107 72107 72107 72107 T2A07 72107
625 625 738 738 738 738 738 738 738 738
853 1,041 1,041 1,059 1,007 738 776 T64 T80 801
47,794 47.794 47.794 47,794 54,748 54,748 54,748 54,748 54,748 54,748
413 #13 413 413 450 450 450 450 4580 480
413 &57 457 442 411 419 354 38 336 254
&67.085 67,085 67,068 67,085 71,569 71,508 71,568 71,568 71,569 71,569
625 B6Z% 826 826 875 875 &75 876 676 875
814 78 778 ™ T09 696 108 666 611 533
X E X X X 90,220 90,228 0,228 0,228 00,223
- - - - - 725 725 725 726 725
- - - - - - 22 885 956 947
71,882 71862 71,882 71,882 71,682 71,882 71,882 71,882 .?1,882 71,882
850 850 850 850 850 8E0 850 8E0 850 850
886 875 837 932 230 1,067 1,180 733 754 742
X X X X X X 80,228 80,229 80229 80,229
- - - - - - 863 663 682 883
- - - - - - - 688 720 74t
57,727 67,727 67,727 67.727 67,727 67,727 75,379 5,378 75,379 5,379
575 575 575 575 575 575 B850 650 650 650
673 751 751 83z 805 BOB 715 872 872 618
H 3 X X % 22044 92.044 92.044 82,044 92,044
- - - - - 70 700 700 00 0o
- - - - - - 910 &2 1,048 993
41,515 41.515 41,515 51.245 51.245 51,245 51.245 51.245 51,245 1,245
413 413 413 463 463 463 483 463 463 463
518 543 543 563 574 492 540 479 456 490
B5,000 85,000 85,000 25,000 5,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 94,662
B850 850 B850 650 850 a50 450 &ol 650 788
933 1,169 1,188 1210 873 764 TR0 B39 841 B9



Lae St (1960)
Square feet
Capaclty
Enroliment

Marshall (2004}
Stuare foet
Capacity
Emrcllment

McGarrah (1967)
Sguare fest
Capacity
Enrcliment

Morrow (1952)
Squarne fast
Capaclty
Envoliment

Mt Zion {1876}
Sruane fost
Capacity
Enroliment

Northoutt {1970}
Square feet
Capacily
Ervoliment

Oliver (1078}
Squate feat
Capacity
Ernrcliment

Pointe South {1981}
Square: feet
Capacity
Erroliment

River's Edge (1994)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Riverdale (1954)
Square feet
Capacity
Enrollmeant

Smith (2000}
Square fest
Capacity
Enrollmeant

Syder {1966)
Square feat
Capatity
Enrofiment

Wate: "X" represent the year the buhding Gig not exist.

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Building Information {continued}

95

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Flecal Yaar -
1908 1959 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
54,220 54,220 54,220 54,220 54,220 54,220 54.220 54,220 54,920 54,290
$00 500 . 500 500 500 s0¢ 500 500 500 500
675 720 720 725 724 707 485 615 580 822
x x x X X 3 89,854 89,854 85,854 9,854
- - - - - . 725 725 725 725
- - - - - - - B52 s 4] 951
73,782 73,782 73,782 73,782 73,782 73,782 72,782 73,782 73,782 73,782
750 750 750 760 750 750 750 750 750 750
1114 1141 1,141 1,004 948 914 925 708 804 705
54,382 54,382 54,382 54,382 54,362 54,382 54,362 54,382 54,282 54,382
450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450
572 83z 632 681 803 586 811 546 523 508
85,815 85,815 85,815 85815 85,815 85,815 85,615 450 85,815 85,815
700 700 700 00 700 700 700 700 700 700
1,073 892 BY2 926 1,004 1,108 981 905 w75 9a7
67,988 67,968 67,988 78,013 78,013 78,013 78,013 78,013 78,013 78,013
750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750
325 574 574 550 815 772 732 610 515 568
67,194 67,194 67,184 67,184 67,184 67,194 67,194 87,104 87,194 87194
675 675 675 675 675 675 675 675 678 675
963 280 980 0923 03 1,075 816 832 842 884
48,255 48,455 57.441 57.441 57,441 57441 57,441 57,441 57,441 57,441
525 626 676 675 615 675 675 675 875 875
787 888 888 880 785 761 o7 827 7% 775
86,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 5,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000
850 850 850 850 850 850 650 850 850 850
1.008 824 824 784 776 823 825 807 ore 1,153
56,013 56,013 56,013 56,013 65,084 65,084 65,084 65,084 £5,084 85,084
578 575 E76 575 700 700 700 700 700 700
803 727 7 T84 75 B77 637 667 708 660
x x 5,132 95,132 95,132 85,132 95,132 95,132 95,132 85,132 .
- - 725 725 725 725 725 725 725 728
. - 750 808 985 1,043 917 954 922 937
72115 72,115 72,116 72,115 72115 79763 79,783 70,783 79,783 79,783
875 675 875 675 675 775 775 775 775 775
810 781 781 767 736 603 713 739 781 B4



School
Elementary
Swint (1968)
Bquare fest
Capacity
Enrciimant
Tara(1864)
Squane feel
Capacity
Enrollment
West Clayton (1864}
Square feet
Capacity
Ensoliment

Middle

Adamsen (1977}
Square feat

- Capacity
Enmliment

Babkb {1966)
Square fesl

. Gapaoity
Erroliment

Foresi Park {1840)
Square feet
Capacity
Enrcltmen
Jonasbare (2004}

*  Souare feet
Capacity
Ervcliment

Kendrick (1996}
Sopiare feat
Cepacity
Enraliment

Lovejoy {1890)
Square feet
Capacity
Enrolfmen

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
School Building Infermation (continned)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
_— Flacal Year

1998 1988 000 2001 2002 2008 001 205 206 2007
64,983 64,883 64,868 71,785 71,785 71,785 71,785 71,785 71,785 76,785
888 688 888 788 788 788 788 788 748 788
925 863 883 927 az7 21 708 638 649 £85
83,950 43,950 83,050 76,224 76,224 76,224 76,284 78,224 78224 76,224
888 588 508 735 795 735 735 735 715 735
947 1,020 1,020 981 1,031 614 826 891 609 500
66,917 66,017 66,917 66,917 68,917 66,917 86,817 66,917 66917 66,917
600 800 80 200 800 500 800 600 600 00
865 B3y 837 998 865 676 81¢ 627 507 527
107284 120,015 120015 1200615 120,015 120015 120015 120,015 120016 120,015
575 775 775 775 75 775 775 775 775 778
1,102 940 940 963 1,076 1,186 1243 1,239 1273 787
85,450 85450 103,443 103,443 103443 103,443 103,443 1023443 103443 108443
575 575 7715 775 775 775 775 775 776 Tib
982 986 938 585 1,044 1,082 1,120 1,057 891 859
66,127 84,064 84964 84,964 84,964 84,964 84,964 84,064 84,964 54,964
400 570 570 570 570 570 570 570 570 570
768 797 797 780 BOB 788 7% 767 665 503
x X x % X x 128170 128,770 128,70 128,170
- - . - - - 8§76 875 876 875
€60 851 578 558 593 585 600 928 a73 938
123458 123456 123458 423458 123468 123488 123468 123468 123458 123458
850 850 50 as0 850 B350 B850 850 850 850
832 1,072 1,072 1,149 1.262 1318 1,429 1,506 936 921
06060 123731 123731 123731 123791 123731 128731 123,731 123,731 123731
550 738 738 738 738 738 738 738 738 738
834 776 778 934 1011 1,050 1,068 1,131 1312 1,280

Note: X~ represent the year the buliding did not exdst.

*Joneshoro Middla bullding was replaced In FY2004. Entoltment prior 1o FY2004 is for the obd building.
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Schoa!

Middia

Morraw (1967)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment -

Mundy's Mill (1973)
Square foel
Capacity
Envoliment

N. Clayton Middie {1969)
Square feet
Capacity
Eneoliment

Poinks Souh (1978}
Square feef
Capacity
Enrofiment

Rex Mil {(2007)
Squere feet
Capacily
Enrcliment

Rivesdale (1988)
Square feel
Capacity
Emcliment

Raoberts (1998)
Squara feet
Capaclty
Enncilment

Saquoyah (2004)
Square feel
Capacity
Enroliment

CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
School Building Information (contineed)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Flscal Year _
1098 4909 2000 2001 2003 2003 2004 |
95,109 96,108 98,100 86,109 06,100 98,109 98,109
B850 650 850 650 850 650 650
1,006 1,047 1.047 1.042 1062 1,042 1,036
100,316 100,316 100,316 118,822 8,822 118,822 118,822
650 650 B30 850 850 850 850
040 750 760 g 643 Ba7 MG
$6,320 86,320 99,950 90,989 59,089 09,389 62,989
575 &75 738 T3 738 738 738
234 930 930 a7e 1,022 1,035 960
126,859 126,859 126,859 141,782 141,792 181,792 141,702
675 675 675 875 875 875 875
o186 o77 o77 1,058 1,067 1,118 1,134

X k3 X X X X x
91,967 91,967 1,907 108,738 108,738 108,738 108,738
675 675 &75 850 250 850 250
878 1,032 1,082 1,055 1,108 1,027 1,063
123,458 123,458 123458 123,458 123,458 123,458 123,458
83§ 838 38 83g 838 838 838
- a3 Bi3 975 1,112 1,141 1,167
% X X X X x 128,170
- - - - - . 875

Nate: 3 represent the vear ihe building did not exist.

97

108,738
850
1070

123,458
838
1,064

128,770
g7

2006

€5,109
650
781

116,822
850
883

99,989

. 138
820
141,792

875
868

108,738
833
123,458
1.053

128,170
875

2001

96,108
650
824

116,822
B30
91

99,969
738
961

141,792
875
954

152,670
1.100
§78

108,738
EL
659

123 458
838
815

128,170
a75
928



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
School Building Information {(continued)

|
]
i
H
L I
i wm @ @ @ an oM @B BE B
|

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Yoar
X Schaal
= s High
Farest Park {1852) i
Square feet 08766 208766 206766 208,766 206768 208766 06786 206796 200766 206,766
Capacity 1,550 1,550 1,550 1,560 1,550 1,550 1,550 1,550 1,550 1,550
Enrolment 1,587 1,868 1,688 1,581 1,504 1,630 1,667 1,567 1518 1526
Jonesbora (1983} i
Squara fest 193634 193634 193834 193434 195,684 198834 193634 193834 193634 1936
Capacity 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,600 1,600 1,500 1,500 1500 1,500
Enrofiment 1,587 1,838 1,838 1,736 1.800 1723 1,647 1,603 1,828 1,667
Lovejoy (1980) i
Squara feat MIASD 217450 217450 ZATAS0  247.460 217,460 217450 217450 217450 217.450
Capacity 1,625 1,625 1,825 1,825 1,625 1,826 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625
Enroliment 1973 2,189 2,189 2,342 2,533 1,980 1,888 1,765 1,837 1,903
Motrow {1970} |
Square fesl 183,636 {83836 183,836 183838 963,436 163,833 183836 183,836 183,638 183838
Capacity 1,375 1375 1,375 4,375 1,375 1,375 1,375 1,376 1,576 1,378
Enrolimenit 1807 1748 1748 1785 1,811 1,920 1,905 2,084 2,149 2,074
ML, Zion { 1890} .
Square fest 231952 21,952 231,852 231,952 231,852 231852 23952 231,852 216241 231,852
Capacity 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,360 1,360 1,360 1,350 1,350 1,575
Enrofiment 1,542 1,502 1,502 1,738 1.794 1727 1,778 1,844 1,862 1,781
Mundy's Mili {2002} i
Stuare fest i x x x 254667 254667 254,667 254,687 254867 254,667
Capacity - - - - 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
Enrollment . - - - . 941 1407 1,970 2,081 2,104
N. Clayton {1987} .
Square feet 148,727 149727  4B7IF 14977 148727 149727 148727 (74,756 71785 171755
Capacity 1,075 1075 1,075 1,075 1075 1,078 1,075 1,325 1325 4,325
Englimerd 1,253 121 1211 1.327 1.404 1,470 1,477 4,456 1,568 1.527
Riverdale (1977} :
Square feet 201?.06?’ 203,067 203,067 (203,087 203,087 203,087 203,087 203,087 203,087 203,067
Capacity 1,325 1,395 1,395 1,395 1,325 1,325 1,325 1,325 1,325 1,325
Enrallment 1,385 1,450 1450 . 1,519 1,660 1,759 1857 1.831 1933 1,981

Nobe: "X* represean the year the butlding did not exist
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AULDIN |
&JENKINS

'CERIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL. CONTROL OVER FiNANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Superintendent and Mambers of the
Clayton County Board of Education

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Clayton County Board of Education
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the Clayton County Board of Education's

-.fmbasicvﬁnamialmlanddaaveéssued@wmmmlmman\dated-ﬂFebrm&ryva;-ma:-:aWemnductadwr-audiHn
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable -
fo financial audits contained in Govermnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United
States.

e nirol Qver Financial Reporti

In planning and performing our audi, we considered the Clayton County Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Clayton County Board of Education’s intarnal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express ar opinion on the effectiveness of the Clayton County Board of Education's internal control over
financial reporting.

Qur consideration of the Imemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily disclose all deficiencies in the internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal controf over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of 2 control does not allow managament or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a controf deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the Clayton County Board of Education’s ability to initiate, authotize, record, process, or report financial data
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principlas such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the Clayton County Board of Education’s financial statemenis that is more than _
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Clayton County Board of Education’s internal control. We -
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 07-1,
07-2, and 07-3 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.
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A material weakness iz a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, thai
resulis in a more than remote likelihood that 2 material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the Clayton County Board of Education’s internai control.

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily idenlify all deficiencies in the intemal
contrdl that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknessas. However, of the significant deficiencies described
above, we considar itam 07-1 to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obiaining reascnable assurance about whether the Clayton County Board of Education’s
financial statements are free of material migstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, ragulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materia!
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howevar, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an ¢pinion. The resulis of our

tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Goverment
Auditing Slandards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Clayton County Board of
Education in a separate letter dated February 8, 2008.

Clayton County Board of Education's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Clayton County Board of
Education’s responses and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Superiniendent and
members of the Clayton County Board of Education and tederal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be usad by anyone other than these specified parties.

Macon, Georgia
February 8, 2008
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LL.C

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORPANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Superintendent and Members of the
Clayton County Board of Education

We have audited the compiiance of the Clayton County. Board of Education. with.the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Clrcular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007.
The Clayton County Board of Education’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal pregrams is the responsibility of the Clayton
County Board of Educetion’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an apinion on the Claytonn County Board
of Education's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally acceptad in
the United States of Americs; the standards applicable to financiel audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Gomptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Locaf
Giovermments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requitements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on & major fedsral program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Clayton County Board of Education’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We
believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Clayton County Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Clayton County Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to zbove that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2007,
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Internal Contral ompliance

The management of the Clayton County Board of Education is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal conirol over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federa! programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Clayton County Board of
Education’s internal control over compliance with raquirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Clayton County Board of
Education’s intemal control over compliance. ’

Our consideration of the intamnal control over compliance was for the limited purpose desceibed in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal controf that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed befow, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider ta be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of & cantrol does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or datect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the ontily’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remoie likslihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is mora than inconsequential will not
be prevented or detectad by the enbity's intemal control. We consider the deficiencies in interal control over
cempliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs as items 07-5 and 07-6 t0 be
significant deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
resulis in & more than remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal prograrn will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. We did not consider any of the
deficlencles described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses.
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The Clayton County Board of Education's responses to the findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Clayton County
Board of Education’s responises and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This repart is intended solaly for the information and uge of management, the Superintendent and
membaers of tha Clayton County Board of Education and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyorie other than these specified parties.

Macon, Georgla
February 8, 2008
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CLAYTON COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOQLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

04

YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2007
" PAGS-
THROUGH
ENTITY
FUNDING AGENCY CFDA I EXPENDITURES
PROGRAMIGRANT HNUMBER NUMBER iN PERIOD
Agricudlure, U.S, Department of
Child Nutrition Cluster
Pass-Through From Georgia Deparimernt of Education
Food and Nutrdtion Program
Food Services
Schodl Breakfast Program 10.553 4032 6567
Natlonal Scheol Luneh Program 10.555 14,432,846
Nattional Schoot Snack Program 10.5556 2,507
Total Chitd Nutrition Claster 16,467,920
Cther Programs
Pass-Through From Georgia Depariment of Education
““Tood and Natfition Program
Fooit Distribution Program (2} 10.550 1,713,920
Total U.S. Department of Agriculfure 20,181,840
Education, U.S. Department of
Special Education Cluster
Pass-Through From Georgia Department of Education
Part B-Special Education
Flow Through 84.027 10,429,549
Preschoal 84.173 250,245
Special Projects 84.027
Federal Vi-B South Metra 498,038
Ga Instructional Material Clr (GMIC) 84.027 688,052
Total Spacial Education Cluster 11,765,884
Pass-Through From Geargia Department of Education
Titte | Improving Academic Achlevement 84.010 16,322,974
School tmprovement 84.010 400,530
Distinguished Schools §4.010 34,2534
B1 Reading First 84357 2,776,410
B3 Even Start 84213 234,765
’ 19,766,813
Tite i
imgroving Teacher Quality 84,357 2,126,156

2,126,156



CLAYTON COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
PASS-
THROUGH
ENTITY
FUNDING AGENCY CFDA {1} EXPENDITURES
PROGRAMIGRANT NUMBER  NUMBER IN PERICD
Math & Scienca Parinerships FYOT 84.366 24,208
Math & Scienca Parinerships FY08 84.366 8,163
32,268
Ed Tach Formuta Grant 84.318 65,164
Ed Tach Competitive Math Grant 84.318 215,214
280,378
Tltte il
Limited Englsh Proficient 84365 561,558
immigrant 84.365 72,265
733,823
Tlle i .
"Sdfe and Drug Free Schools And Communities 84.188 413,219
413,219
Tide v
Innovaive Education Program Stretegies 84208 134,023
134,923
Pass through from DOE
Education for Homeless Children and Youth a4.196 77,804
" Hurricane Relief - Education for Homeless Children and Youth 34,938 42,574
Charter Schools - Federal Implementetion Grant 84.282 227,432
347817
Vocafional Education-Basic Grants to States
Professional Development 84.048 62,127
Program lmprovemant 84.048 506,102
68,228
Pass-though from Georgia Dapartment of
Technical and Adult Educalion-
Adult Education 84,002 232,009
Adull EdAnstitutions) 84.002 " 15476
Adull EdfT ANE FYD6 84,002 14,407
Adutt EHTANF FY07 84.002 19,226
English Literacy / Clvics Educeation 84.002 11,183
202,001
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CLAYTON COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2007
PASS-
- THROUGH
ENTITY
FUNDING AGENCY CFDA D EXPENDITURES
PROGRAM/GRANT NUMBER NUMBER IN PERKOD
U. 8. Depariment of Education '
Direct Awards
Teaching American History 84.215X 16,554
Teaching American History 84.215% 174,862
191.416
Early Reading First 84.3688 31,392
Early Reading First 84,3508 343,911
375,302
Impact Ald 84,041

Totat U.5. Department of Education
0. 3. Department &f Defense

Direct Award
ROTC

U. S. Department of Justice -
G.RE.AT. Grant

Cuorporation for National and Commamity Sernvice
Learn and Serve America - Regutar School Based

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

The Bchool District provided Federal Assistance to the folowing Subreciplents:

Lenwis Academy of Excellence
Solid Rotk Christian Academy
Mt. Zion Chiristtan Academy
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12.unknown

21.053

94,004

3,226

37.024.747

392,583
382,583

62,180
82,183

8,245
8,245

57,689,598



CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

A SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Stetements
Type of auditer's report Issued

Intemal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Significant defictencies identified not considerad
‘fo be materiz| weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial stalements noted?

A
Internal Controf over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?

Signfficant deficiencies identified not considered
ic be material weaknesses?

TFype of auditor's repott issued on compliance for
major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accardance with OMB Circutar
A-133, Section 510(a)7?

identification of malor program:
CFDA Number _

10.553
10555

84.027
§4.173

84.357
84.367

Ungualified
X vyes no
_X_vyes ____ nonereponed
yes _X_ no
e YBS X110
X yes none reported
Unqualified
yes X no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
U.8. Bepanment of Agricultura

Child N&t{itfon Clustor Program;

School Breakfast Pragram
National Scheol Lunch Program

U.&. Department of Education

Spacial Education Cluster
Flowthrough

Preschool

Non-Cluster Program:
Reading First

Improving Teacher Quality
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

A SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS (Continued)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $1,730,688

Auditee quelified as low-risk auditee? ves _X no

B. FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

07-1. Accounts Receivable Transactions

- Criteria: “Internsi-coifirols shoiid'be in place to-ensurethat any prior year ertiies to record accounis receivable are

properly reversed upon receipt.

Condition: internal controis did not detect a misstatement in accounts receivable due to the failure of the School
System to properly reverse prior year accounts raceivable as par of the year end closeout process.

Context: We addressed 1hla matter with School System officials whe determined the appropriate adjustments fo
accounts receivable in the General Fund.

Effect: Two audit adjustments in the amount of $2,420,784 and $147,455 were required to reverse prior year
accounts receivable. '

Recommendation: We recommend the School System strengthen intarnal controls to ensure that all prior year
accounis receivable are properly reversed in the subsequent year.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Steps are in place to include a supervisory review of
previoits year receivables and timely reversal of these balances.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

B. FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT (CONTINUED)
07-2. Accounis Payable Transactions

Criteria: Interna! controls should be in place to ensura that any prior year entries to record accounts payable are
properly reversed when paid, all amounts owed are properly recorded as accounts payable at year end, and
~ amocunts dus between funds are not included in both accounts payable and interfund payables,

Condition: Internal controls did ot detect a misstaiement in accounts payable due {o the failure of the School
System 1o properly raverse prior year accounts payable and record all current year accounts payable, and failure to
detect amounts inciuded in both accounts payable and interfund payables as part of the year end ¢loseout process.

GContext: We addressed these matters with School System officials whe detarmined the appropriate adjustments to
accounts payable in the Capital Projects and School Food Sarvice funds.

Effect: Audit adjustments tetaling $300,294 in tha Capital Projects Fund and $63,834 in the School Food Service
Fund were required to properly record accounts payable and interfund payables.

Recommendation: We recommend the School Systam strengthen internal contiols to ensura that alf accounts
payable and interiund payabies are properly stated in the financial statements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Steps are In place 1o include a review by
supervisory staff to detect accounts payable and interfund payable amounts prior to year end close out,

07-3. Accounting for Clalms Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR}

Criteria: internal controls should be in place to ensure that an estimate for dental claims incurred bat not reperted is
property recorded in the financial statements,

Condition: Intemal controls did not detect a misstatement in claims incurred but not reported due to aversight by the
School System ag part of the year end closeout process,

Contexi: We addressed this matter with School System officials who determined the appropriate adjustments to
liabilities in the Dental Fund,

Effect: An audit adjustment in the amount of $159,419 was required to adjust liabifities In the Dental Fund.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

B. FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT {CONTINUED)

07-3. Aeccounting for Claims lncurr_ed Bui Not Reported (IBNR} (Confinued)

Recommendation: We recommend the School System strangther internal controls to ensure an estimale for ¢laims
incurred but not reported is recordead in the financiat statements,

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Steps are in place to ensure more timely information
from the vendor and the Benefits Department to ensure proper recordtng of dental liabilities ptior to the year end
close.

07-4. Under Collateralization of School System Deposlts
Non-material Noncompilance

Criteria: The Official Code of Georgia (OCGA) Section 45-8-12 (c) requires all depositories of public funds to pledge
securities of not tess than 110% of the depogited public funds.

Condiion: For the year ended June 30, 2007, the School System's deposits heid at one financial institution were
under collateralized,

Context: During our review of collateral confirmations obtained from the Schocl Systems’ financial institutions, we
noted that School System deposits at one financial institution were undercollateralized by $53,084,

Effect: School System accounts were not adequately collateralized at one financial Institution, allowing for the
possibility of loss of assets if the financial instifution were fo become inscivent.

Cause: The financia! institution has not appropriately coded all SchooI'Systam accounts as public funds.

Recommendation: We recommend the School System periodically review a fisting of ali accounts opened under the
School System's federal identification number to determine that all ara propery coded as public deposits,
Additionally, the School System should request from the financial institutions haolding Schaol System depostts, a
monthly pledging report to determine that each financial institution has.pledged securities of not less than 110% of
the deposited funds as required by Georgia law. :

Views of Fesponsible Officials and Planned Corective Action: Controls have been put in piace to review the
accounts of the schools on a regular basis by the Audit Manager. This step will prevent future accounts being under
collateralized.  School bockkespers and principals are being trained regarding the importance of this step in
establishing a new account with a bank.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
07-5. Accounting for Revenues in the Titte | Fund.

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to ensure that only revenues associated with the Title I} program are
recorded in the Tile Il Fund.

" Condition: Internal controls did not detect the posting of locat revenues against expenditures of the Title I Fund due
to cversight by the Schooi System as part of the year end closeout process.

Context: We addressed this matter with School System officials who determined the appropriate adjustiments to
expenditures, revenues, and accounts recaivable in the Title H Fund and the Genergl Fund.

Effect: Ar audit adjustment in the amount of $26,742 was required io‘adjust expenditures, revenues, and accounts
receivable in the Title Il Fund, Another adjustment in the amount of $26,742 was required to adjust revenues and
intarfund receivables in the General Fund.

Recommendation: We recommend the School System strengthen intemal controls to ensure only allowable
expenditures and revenues are recorded in the Title || Fund.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Cormrective Action: Steps are in place for a cioser review of
axpenditures in the Title |l fund to ensure all expenditures are appropriate for the fund.

07-6. Praper Approval of Disbursements In the School Nutrition Program

Criteria: Sound internal controls require policies and procedures to be in place fo monitor expenditures under
tederal programs to ensure grant funds are only spent on allowabia expenditures.

Condition: Four (4) of the sixty {60} expenditures tested were not preperly approved prior to the disbursement of
funds.

Context: Lack of proper approval was noted during control testing related to the grant.
Effect: Without proper approval and review, unaflowable expenditures could be charged to the grant.

Recommendation: We recommand the School System strengthen intemnal controls o ensure that all axpendifures
are approved o prevent the possibility of unallowable expenditures being charged to the grant.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Steps have been put in place to ensure proper
approval and review of expenditures of the schoul nutrition fund.
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CLAYTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

06-1  Under Collateralization of School Sysiem Deposits
‘Non-material Noncompliance -

Cilteria: The Officlal Code of Georgia (OCGA) Section 45-8-12 (c) requires aff depositories of public funds
to pledge securities of not less than 110% of the depasited public funds.

Condition: For the year ended Juns 30, 2007, the School System's deposits held at one financial institution
were under collateralized. '

=ewhbdies Response/Status -hirreselved:-Seeturentyeardinding 87-4.
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